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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

Lori A. SbiUncne

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 l-$00-852-3345 Ext 9474

ChrislineL-SantaoieUo Fox: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhs.nh.gov
Director

May 14. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Requested Action #1

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability,, to enter Into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Waypoint (VC# 177166
- B002), Manchester NH, for the continued provision of the State Grant in Aid (SGIA) Homeless
Assistance program and Runaway Youth Services, by exercising a contract renewal option,
increasing the total price limitation by $477,404 from $252,556 to $729,960, and extending the
completion date from June 30. 2021, to June 30, 2023, effective upon Govemor and Council
approval. 41.10% Federal Funds. 58.90% General Funds.

Requested Action #2

Contingent upon Requested Action #1, authorize the Department of Health and Human
Senrices, Division of Economic and Housing Stability, to enter into a Retroactive Sole Source
amendment to an existing contract with Waypoint (VC# 177166 - B002), Manchester, NH, for the
continued provision of Runaway Youth Senrices to add additional federal funds to maximize federal
dollars, by increasing the total price limitation by $150,000 from $729,960 to $879,980, effective
retroactive to July 1, 2020, upon Govemor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Govemor and Council on June 19, 2019, item #40. It
was subsequently amended with Govemor and Council approval on August 28, 2019, item #20B,
and most recently amended with Govemor and Council approval on July 15, 2020, item #20.

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2021 for Requested Action #2 and are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023. for Requested Action #1 with the authority to
adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

The Deportment of Health atid Human Seraicee'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for ciliscns to achieve health and independence.
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Request Action

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF ECONOMIC AND HOUSING STABILITY, BUREAU OF HOUSING STABILITY,
HOUSING • SHELTER PROGRAM

State
Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Titie

Job

Number

Current

Budget
Increase

(Decrease)

Current

Modified
Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for

Program
Services

TBD $166,817 SO $166,817

2021 102/500731 Contracts for

Program
Services

TBD $85,739 $0 $85,739

2022 102/500732 Contracts for

Program
Services

TBD $0 $88,702 $88,702

2023 102/500733 Contracts for

Program
Services

TBD $0 $88,702 $88,702

Sub Total $252,556 $177,404 $426,960

05-95-42-450010-61460000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF ECONOMIC AND HOUSING STABILITY, BUREAU OF FAMILY
ASSISTANCE, TEMP ASSISTNC TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 502/500891 Payments to
Providers

45057501 $0 $0 $0

2021 502/500891 Payments to
Providers

45057501 so $0 $0

2022 502/500891 Payments to
Providers

45057501 $0 $150,000 $150,000

2023 502/500891 Payments to
Providers

45057501 $0 $150,000 $150,000

Sub Total $0 $300,000 $300,000

Total $252,556 $477,404 $729,960
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Request Action U2

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget
Increase

(Decrease)

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for

Program
Services

TBD $166,817 $0 $166,817

2021 102/500731 Contracts for

Program
Services

TBD $85,739 $0 $85,739

2022 102/500732 Contracts for

Program
Services

TBD $88,702 $0 $88,702

2023 102/500733 Contracts for

Program
Sen/ices

TBD $88,702 $0 $88,702

Sub Total $429,960 $0 $429,960

05-95-42-450010-61460000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF ECONOMIC AND HOUSING STABILITY, BUREAU OF FAMILY
ASSISTANCE. TEMP ASSISTNC TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Current

Modified

Budget

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 502/500891 Payments to
Providers

45057501 $0 $0 $0

2021 502/500891 Payments to
Providers

45057601 $0 $150,000 $150,000

2022 502/500891 Payments to
Providers

45057501 $150,000 $0 $150,000

2023 502/500891 Payments to
Providers

45057501 $150,000 $0 $150,000

Sub Total $300,000 $150,000 $450,000

Total $729,960 $150,000 $879,960

Requested Action #1

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 because the Agreement was previously
amended with a sole source request and MOP 150 requires any subsequent request to be labeled
as sole source.

The purpose of this renewal request is to continue State Grant in Aid (SGIA) Homeless
Assistance program the Waypoint to ensure individuals and families experiencing housing instability
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receive the essential services and supports that include case management and emergency shelter
services or case management services only.

Approximately 4,500 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023
through this contract and 23 other SGIA Homeless Assistance program Agreements that have been
or are anticipated to be approved by the Governor and Council.

The Contractor will continue providing emergency shelter to individuals and families
experiencing homelessness or are at risk to. The Contractor will continue providing case
management services to individuals and families who are cumently in shelters as well as ir^dividuals
and families who are unsheltered in order to connect them with housing services; other essential
services; and provide ongoing case management. The case management services are personalized
and based on the strengths and support needs for each individual or family. Case management
services include, but are not limited to, housing navigation services; assistance with applications for
housing; assistance with applications for public assistance; referrals for healthcare, including mental
health or substance use treatment; linkages to education, and employment supports.

The Contractors are monitored for performance through reports available from the Homeless
Management Information System, which include information regarding;

•  Length of time individuals remain homeless.
•  The extent to which individuals who exit homelessness to permanent housing

destinations return to homelessness.

•  Successful exit to permanent housing destinations.

As referenced in Exhibits C-1 of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the
agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon sati^actory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising
its option to renew services for two (2) of the two (2) years available.

Requested Action #2

This request is sole source because the Agreement was previously amended with a sole
source request and MOP 150 requires any subsequent request to be labeled as sole source.

This contract is retroactive because TANF dollars should have previously been added to the
current contract. Governor and Council approved item# 40 on Jurte 19, 2019, which provided for a
$7 million shared price limitation (100% General Funds) among 23 contractors, to provide the SGIA
Homeless Assistance program, which included Waypoint. Governor and Council approved a
subsequent amendment request (item #20B) on August, 28, 2019, which added $300,000 of
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) (100% Federal) to Waypoint's Agreement. This
additional funding was specific to Waypoint's agreement and not included in the shared price
limitation for the provision of services to run away youth experiencing homelessness. On July 15,
2020, the Governor and Council approved item #20, which converted the SGIA Agreements from a
single shared price limitation to individual price limitations. However, an oversight occurred during
the conversion, as the Department did not incorporate the additional TANF funding. The oversight
occurred due to a numt)er of reasons that include: (1) the Department's strategic response to the
COVID-19 pandemic took precedence, which impacted programmatic, financial, and other
operational functions; and (2) high vacancy rates within Finance and the Department and an inability
to fill positions due to the hiring freeze in place at the time. The Department is now requesting to
retroactively add a portion of these funds back to Waypoint's contract to ensure senrices to these
youth can continue to be provided.
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Waypoint uses the TANF funding for a specialized program for youth with a focus on those
that are under the age of 18. Waypoint works with the youth and their families, with the goal to help
these youth reconnect and/reunify with their families or relatives.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize these requests, individuals and familieswho
are experiencing housing instability will not receive the essential services and supports for
themselves and their families.

Area served: Statewide

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF ECONOMIC
AND HOUSING STABILITY. BUREAU OF HOUSING STABILITY, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

100%Genoral Funds

Way point

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Current

Modified

Budoet
2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD S166.817 $0 $166,817

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $85,739 SO $85,739

2022 102/500732 Contracts for Program Services TBD $0 $88,702 $88,702

2023 102/500733 Contracts for Program Services TBD $0 $88,702 $88,702

Sub Total $252,556 $177,404 $429,960

05-95-42-450010-61480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF ECONOMIC
AND HOUSING STABILITY, BUREAU OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMP ASSISTNC TO NEEDY FAMILIES

100% Federal Funds

Waypoint Vendor# 177166-B002

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budoet

Current

Modified

Budoet

Current

Modified

Budoet

2020 502/500891 Payments to Providers 45057501 $0 $0 $0

2021 502/500891 Payments to Providers 45057501 $0 SO $0

2022 502/500891 Payments to Providers 45057501 $0 $150,000 $150,000

2023 502/500891 Payments to Providers 45057501 $0 $150,000 $150,000

Sub Total $0 - $300,000 $300,000

Total $252,556 $477,404 $729,960

RETRO

Waypoint

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Current

Modified

Budoet

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $166,817 SO $166,817

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $85,739 $0 $85,739

2022 102/500732 Contracts for Program Services TBD $88,702 $0 $88,702

2023 102/500733 Contracts for Program Services TBD $88,702 $0 $88,702

Sub Total $429,960 $0 $429,960

05-95-42-450010-61460000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF ECONOMIC
AND HOUSING STABILITY, BUREAU OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMP ASSISTNC TO NEEDY FAMILIES

100% Federal Funds

Waypoint Vendor #177166-8002

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budoet

Current

Modified

Budoet

Current

Modified

Budoet

2020 502/500891 Payments to Providers 45057501 $0 $0 $0

2021 502/500891 Payments to Providers 45057501 $0 $150,000 $150,000

2022 502/500891 Payments to Providers 45057501 $150,000 $0 $150,000

2023 502/500891 Payments to Providers 45057501 $150,000 $0 $150,000

Sub Total $300,000 $150,000 $450,000

Total $729,960 $150,000 $879,960
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the State Grant in Aid Homeless Assistance Program contract is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services {"State" or "Department") and
Waypoint ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #40), as amended on August 28. 2019 (Item #20B) and July 15, 2020, (Item #20),
the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
Form P-37, General Provisions, Section 1, Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions, Subsection 1.1,
the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

3. $879,960

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Services, to read;

2.1. The Contractor shall provide emergency shelter services to individuals and families who
are homeless statewide that include but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Ensuring temporary shelter (non-permanent shelter) is designed to meet the basic
needs of individuals and families who have no other housing options and who
would otherwise be without a place to sleep.

2.1.2. Ensuring basic needs of each individual are met that at a minimum include a safe,
protective, and sanitary environment, on a short-term emergency or transitional
basis, as described in RSA 126-A:26.

2.1.3. Operating a facility in accordance with Exhibit C-1 Operation of Facilities:
Compliance with Laws and Regulations that includes at a minimum:

2.1.3.1. Building maintenance and repair.
2.1.3.2. Security systems.

2.1.3.3. Heating and possible cooling equipment.

2.1.3.4. Property and business insurance.

2.1.3.5. Utilities and furnishings.

2.1.3.6. Amenities such as bathrooms.

2.2. The Contractor shall assist individuals and families who are homeless with accessing and
applying for services that lead to permanent housing by providing Case Management
Services that include, but are not limited to:

Waypoint Amondmont #3

RFA-2020-DEHS-01-STATE-24-A03 Page 1 of 6 5/3/2021
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2.2.1. Assessing individuals and families' needs for well-being and obtaining housing,
and developing an individualized plan to meet those needs.

2.2.2. Developing an individualized plan with the types of services and assistance
programs to meet their needs.

t

2.2.3. Assisting individuals and families with accessing emergency shelter.

2.2.4. Assisting individuals and families with applying for and accessing permanent
housing.

2.2.5. Assisting individuals and families with applying for mainstream benefits, including,
but not limited to, SSI, TANF, SNAP, Medicaid, Veteran and other State or
Federal benefits.

2.2.6. Assisting individuals and families with accessing community providers and
supports, for, including but not limited to, mental health services, substance use
treatment, medical care, employment, veterans benefit, financial and food
assistance, and education supports.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with the program requirements, which include but are not
limited to:

2.3.1. Following best practices in providing emergency shelter services in accordance
with the National Alliance to End Homelessness, "The Five Keys to Effective
Emergency Shelter" that include but are not limited to:

2.3.1.1. Housing First Approach

2.3.1.2. Safe and appropriate diversion

2.3.1.3. Immediate and low-barrier access

2.3.1.4. Housing-focused, rapid exit services

2.3.1.5. Data to measure performance

2.3.2. Participating in Coordinated Entry as required by the State, a centralized or
coordinated process designed to get people in permanent support housing, in
accordance with the NH BOS CES Policy Manual adopted on January 23, 2018,
that is herein incorporated by reference and as amended.

2.3.3. Accepting homeless and at risk of homelessness individuals and families
regardless of their sobriety and other conditions such as but not limited to mental
health services, medication stability, sexual orientation, vulnerability to illness,
vulnerability to victimization, vulnerability to physical assault, racial equality,
marital status or ability to pay program fee, in accordance with federal Housing
Urban Development (HUD) guidance for low threshold eligibility programs.

2.3.4. Entering data into the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) to
collect client-level data and data on the provision of housing and services to
homeless individuals and families, in accordance with the federal HUD data
standards for emergency shelter, unless restrictive by law such as for domestic
violence. The data standards may be found at: httD://nh-
hmis.oro/sites/default/files/reference/NH-HMIS-PnP-l 12018.pdf

2.3.5. Agreeing to on-site monitoring, on an annual basis, to review compliance,
progress, and performance, which includes, but is not limited to:

2.3.5.1. Reviewing policies and procedures for services provided.

2.3.5.2. Reviewing financial analyses.

2.3.5.3. Reviewing for compliance with safety and hazard requireme^os

V^aypoint Amendment #3 Mf)t
RFA-2020-DEHS-01-STATE-24-A03 Page 2 of 6 5/3/2021
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2.3.5.4. Reviewing Data and HMIS entry standards.

2.3.6. Complying with New Hampshire Administrative Rules He-M 314 Rights of
Persons Using Emergency Shelters.
http://wvw.qencour1.state.nh.us/rules/state aaencies.he-m300.html and
ensuring that individuals understand their rights.

2.3.7. The Contractor shall complete a SGIA Program Project Program Monitoring
Workbook per Department request.

2.3.8. The Contractor shall participate in training on contractual compliance arid
technical assistance, as required by the Department.

2.4. Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)

2.4.1. The Contractor shall ensure services are provided to individuals and families
that are at or below two hundred percent (200%) of the current Federal Poverty
Level (FPL) and that appropriate use of TANF funds remains consistent with the
Federally mandated purposes of the TANF program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20,
which include but are not limited to:

2.4.1.1. Providing assistance to families In need so that children may be
cared for in their own homes or in the homes of relatives;

2.4.1.2. Ending the dependence of parents on government benefits by
promoting job preparation, work and marriage;

'2.4.1.3. Preventing and reducing the incidence of out-of-wedlock
pregnancies; and

2.4.1.4. Encouraging the formation and maintenance of two parent families.

2.4.2. The Contractor shall provide services that include but are not limited to:

2.4.2.1. Case management and counseling.

2.4.2.2. Peer Support.

2.4.2.3. Training and education for job retention and advancement.

2.4.2.4. Other employment-related services that do not provide basic income
support as defined in 45 CFR 261.31 {a)(1).

2.4.2.5. Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health
insurance.

2.4.2.6. Crisis intervention and supportive services to assist the individuals
in meeting their immediate needs to ensure safety is met. including
any immediate housing needs

2.4.2.7. Prevention and education to reduce the incidences of out-of-wedlock

pregnancies and promote health relationships.

2.4.2.8. Health information and harm reduction information regarding safe
lifestyle choices.

2.4.2.9. Individual assessment of current needs.

2.4.2.10. Health. Mental Health, and Substance Use Treatment and

Counseling not covered by Medicaid or other insurances.

2.4.3. The Contractor shall provide services limited to four (4) months per client that
include but are not limited to:

2.4.3.1. Housing assistance.

Waypoint Amendment #3 MdV
RFA-2020-DEHS-01-STATE-24-A03 Page 3of 6 5/3/2021
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2.4.3.2. Legal assistance.

2.4.3.3. Child care and transportation. If the parent is employed, child care
and transportation services may be extended based on client need.

2.4.4. The Contractor shall provide material support for up to four (4) months for each
client served, which may include but is not limited to:

2.4.4.1. Food.

2.4.4.2. Clothing.

2.4.4.3. Shelter (including rental assistance).

2.4.4.4. Utilities.

2.4.4.5. Household goods.

2.4.4.6. Personal care items.

2.4.4.7. Laundry.

2.4.5. The Contractor shall maintain TANF records of eligibility, which consist of any
supporting documentation that indicates the client is below the stated Federal
Poverty Level (FPL).

2.4.6. The Contractor shall ensure all applicants provide supporting documentation
indicating they have applied for or are receiving benefits through the Income
Eligibility Verification System (lEVS), which is part of the NH Easy NH Medicaid
Portal. Supporting documentation may include official confirmation that an
applicant or client is receiving a benefit including but not limited to:

2.4.6.1. TANF cash assistance.

2.4.6.2. Food Stamps

2.4.6.3. Medicaid.

2.4.6.4. State medical assistance

2.4.6.5. Child care subsidy

2.4.7. The Contractor shall assist clients who are not receiving any of the benefits
outlined in Subsection 2.2.6 with applying for assistance through the NH Easy
NH Medicaid Portal to ensure they meet the lEVS requirements for TANF
funding utilization.

2.4.8. The Contractor shall submit a corrective action plan to the Department within ten
(10) days of receiving the notice of decision that the Contractor Is found out of
compliance with TANF reporting requirements listed in Subsection 3.4., below,
time frames of providing any reporting, or any other aspects of the TANF
provisions listed. This corrective action plan will be reviewed and overseen by
the Department until compliance is regained.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment Section 3 by adding Subsection
3.6 to read:

3.6. The Contractor shall provide backup documentation for all reimbursement requests.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment Section 3 by adding Subsection
3.7. to read:

3.7. The Contractor shall only utilize TANF Funding until alternative funding sources are
secured. The Contractor shall notify the Department within fifteen (15) days of alternative
funding securement. ,—os

Waypoint Amendment #3
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
-in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DoeuSlgned by;

5/6/2021
—  ̂ BOOoyrrgeepuBij.,, —T
Date Name: chnstme santameilo

Title: Di rector

Waypoint

•DocuSlgnvd by:

5/3/2021
»2e8PflA20<OflP*B0r

Date Name: Borja Alvarez oe Toledo
Title: president and CEO

Waypoint Amendment #3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSlgntd by:

5/13/2021
•zrr T] D5Ckfl562E32WAt...
Date Name: catnerine Pinos

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Waypoint Amendment #3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner. Sccreiao' of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that WAYPOiNT is a New
Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire orfSeptember 25. 1914. 1 further ceriif^' that

all fees and documents required by the Secretar\' of Slate's office have been received and is in good standing as for as this office is
concerned.

Business ID: 62585

Certificate Number: 000536IS8I

y
Uo

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hand and.cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this 3rd day of MayA.D. 2021.

7/^.

William M. Gardner

Sccrciar>' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1. _KENNETH SHELDON, Board Chair ■ do hereby certily that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of ^WAYPOINT
(Agency Name)

2. The fbllowing are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 12/4/18
(Date)

RESOLVED: That this corporation enters into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its
Department of Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED: Tbat the PRESIDENT AND CEO.
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

BORJA ALVAREZ DE TOLEDO is the duly elected PRESIDENT/CEO_^
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

3, The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 4th day of May, 2021.

Kenneth Sheldon. Chair (Signature of the Elected Officer)

NH DHHS, Office ofSusnessOperations ^
Bureau of Provider RelationchlpManagement

Certificate ofVoteWthout Seal
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DATE tUM/OO/YYYVJ

03/02/2021

TWIR rFRTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE

RFPRFSFNT4TIVF OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

IMPORTANT: If tho certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the polic
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of tho po
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such

/(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSUKbU provisions or ue onooisuu.
Icy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
endorsomentfs).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester 03101

r,... (603)669-3216 noV (603)645-4331
E'MWL anicKiinecfOSsagency.com

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC 1

iNAiiftrB A - Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co
16056

INSURED

Waypoint

Po Box 446

Manchester N" 03105

iNSURERC- Travelers Casualty 8 Surety Co of Amenca
31194

INSURER F: i.

e;

InSIT

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN , |^m|i
ADSLEDBR
■HS0|WVD POLICY NUMBER tMMJDO/YYYYI (MWDO/YYYY)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-IAAOE 1 X| OCCUR

FACH OCCURRENCE
UXWWJETORERTED
PREMISES (E« oeaiffTOS)

MED CXP (Any or» ptncfi)

PHPK2151359 07/01/2020 07/01/2021 PERSONAL a AOV INJURY

GEN-LAQOREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY I I JE(^ 1 1 LOC
OTHER' PfOlessbnal Liability

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS ■ COMP/OP AGG

Aggregate- Prof llab

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTOX

(bueiNEo Single LIMIT
rE« accklenU

X

BODILY INJURY |Pv p«(ton)

OWNED
ALfTOSONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LUB

EXCESS LIAD

OED

SCHEDULED
ALTTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2151341 07/01/2020 07/01/2021 BODILY INJURY (Per ecddetu)
PROPERTY DAJAAGE
(Per eccMenll

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

PHUB728723 07/01/2020 07/01/2021 aggregate

IX RETENTIONS
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y IN
ANY PROPRieTOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
II yee. deecriea under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS betow

T / W

X ■FEr
STATUTE

"onr
ER

HCHS202100Q0429 {3a.) NH 02fl)1/2021 02/01/2022 e.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

B.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

Fidelity & Forgery 105912196 04/01/2020 04/01/2021

Limtt

Deductible

100.000

5,000

1.000.000

2,000.000

2.000.000

j 1,000,000

s 1,000.000

4,000,000

4,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

500,000

5,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101, AddlUerjjl RtmarXi Schedule, may M etteehed H more epace re«|ulred)
Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

State of New Hampshire Department of Health 8 Human Services
Brown Building
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301
1  1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) Tho ACORD name and logo aro registered marks of ACORO



DocuSign Envelope ID; 14BFFC68-7403-4FA8-A7FF-28C49F037405

0

WAYPOINT
Help Along the Way

Formtrly

CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES

MISSION STATEMENT:

Empowering people of all ages through an array of human services and advocacy

HEADQUARTERS

m
•III*

ftKII*

ffl'Bifiiiiii



DocuSign Envelope ID; 14BFFC6B-7403-4FA8-A7FF-28C49F037405

WAYPOINT
Help Along the Way

WAYPOINT

Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon)



OocuSign Envelope ID; 14BFFC6B-7403-4FA8-A7FF-28C49F037405

CONTENTS

Page

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT 1

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4

Consolidated Statement of Activities 5

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses 6

7

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 8

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses - 2020 29

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses - 2019 30



OocuSign Envelope ID; 14BFFC6B-7403-4FA8-A7FF-28C49F037405

^ Melanson
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustees

Waypoint

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Waypoint, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2020, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

Merrimack, New Hampshire

Andover. Massachusetts

Greenfield, Massachusetts

Ellsworth, Maine 800.282.2440 I melaneoncpas.com
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Melanson

of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Waypoint as of December 31, 2020, and the changes
in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Waypoint's 2019 consolidated financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements In our
report dated May 26, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended December 31,2019 is consistent, in ail material respects, with
the audited consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The Consolidated Schedules of Operating Expenses for 2020 and 2019 are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required "part of the consolidated
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the undierlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements.; the information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in "all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditihg Standards, we have also issued our report dated
April 21, 2021 on our consideration of Waypoint's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain :prpyisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that^report is solely to describe the scope of our

800.282:2440 I melansoncpas.com
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testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Waypolnt's internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Waypoint's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Merrimack, New Hampshire
April 21, 2021

80b.282!2440 I melansoncpas.com
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2020

(with comparative totals as of December 31, 2019)

2020

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net

Grants receivable

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Investments

Beneficial interest held In trusts

Property and equipment, net

Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Without Donor

Restrictions

2,127,044

72,111

355,608

845,159

177,418

3.577,340

18,602,732

6.437,580

25.040,312

With Donor

Restrictions

626,270 5

526,270

2,729,290

1,987,871

4,717,161

2020

Total

S  28,617,652 S 5,343,431

2,753,314

72,111

355,608

845,159

177,418

4.203,610

21,332,022

1,987,871

6.437,580

29,757.473

$  33,961,083

2019

Total

107,732

69,747

582,428

678.502

79,161

145,979

1,663,549

18,887,020

1,837,101

6,460,382

27,184,503

5  28,848,052

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Other liabilities

Bonds payable

Refundable advance

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Bonds payable, net of current portion
Deferred loans • NHHFA

Interest rate swap agreements

Refundable advance

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

238,348

621,258

64,899

160,000

2,088,559

3,173,064

3,755,000

1,250,000

1,282,753

440,750

6,728,503

5  238,348 $
621,258

64,899

160,000

2,088,559

3,173,064

3,755,000

1.250,000

1,282,753

440,750

9,901,567

6,728,503

9,901,567

139,382

646,070

66,628

150,000

1,002,080

3,915,000

1,250,000

1,072,580

6.237,580

7,239,660

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

18,716,085

18,716,085

$  28.617,652

5,343,431

5,343,431

18,716,085

5,343,431

24,059,516

16,779,112

4,829,280

21,608,392

$  5.343,431 5 33.961,083 5 28,848,052

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.

4
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

(vi/ith comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2019)

2020

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

Support;

Govemmenl grants

Contributions

In-kind contributions

Income from special events, net

Revenue:

Service fees

Other (loss)

Net assets released from restriction;

Program releases

Endowment releases

Endowment transfer to support operations

Total Support and Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Program services

Management and general
Fundraising

Total Operating Expenses

Change In net assets before
non-operating Items

NON-OPERATING ITEMS:

Investment Income (loss)

Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swap
Gain on the sale of asset

Change in beneficial interest
Interest income

Endowment transfer to support operations

Total Non-Operating Items

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

\Afithout Donor

Restrictions

8,253,575

534,284

48,079

421,706

4,892,693

30,607

1,184,550

30,058

172,162

15.567,714

13.335,147

1,615,774

637,485

15.588,406

(20,692)

2,327,782

(210,173)
11,132

1,086

(172.162)

1.957.665

1,936,973

16.779,112

5  18.716.085

With Donor 2020 2019

Restrictions Total Total

S  8.253,575 S  5,502,499

1,272.131 1,806,415 1,296,284

48,079 87,864

-

421,706 487,018

4,892,693 5.524,270

-

30,607 65,971

(1,184,550) - -

(30,058) -
-

. 172,162 627,685

57,523 15,525,237 13,591,591

13,335,147 12,086,191

1,615,774 1,308,438

. 637.485 517.402

15,588.406 13.912,031

57,523 36,831 (320,440)

305,858 2,633.640 3,380,301

. (210,173) (187,054)

_ 11,132 -

150,770 150,770 157,510

. 1,086 1,851

. (172,162) (627.685)

456.628 2,414,293 2.724.923

514,151 2,451,124 2.404,483

4.829,280 21.608.392 19.203.909

5,343,431 $  24.059,516 5 ' 21,608.392

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.

5
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2019)

Personnel expense:

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Retirement plan
Payroll related costs
Mileage reimbursement
Contracted services

Subtotal personnel expense

Accounting

Assistance to individuals

Communications

Conferences, conventions, meetings

Depreciation

In-kind contributions

Insurance

Interest

Legal
Membership dues
Miscellaneous

Occupancy

Printing and publications
Rental and equipment maintenance
Supplies
Travel

Total

Program

Services

2020

Management

and General Fundraising

2020

Total

2019

Total

7,594,485 $  953,404 S  387,778 S  8,935,667 S  8,056,704

1,076,199 140,540 22,756 1,239.495 994,576

51,179 35,001 7,131 93,311 -

853,429 84,386 31,656 969,471 961,026

192.609 505 65 193,179 427,124

524,432 113,605 79,701 717,738 655,732

10,292,333 1,327,441 529,087 12,148,861 11,095,162

_ 34,620 . 34,620 31,699

717,571 7,675 • 725,246 716,800

155,169 14,488 8,829 178,486 152,354

95,019 33,592 821 129,432 58,038

409,308 53,008 - 462,316 366,851

48,079 . - 48,079 88,014

78,300 12,082 2,623 93,005 77,872

236,318 37,781 2,779 276,878 319,406

- 14,795 - 14,795 20,671

25,360 2,908 1,660 29,928 27,857

51,364 20,620 940 72,924 47,049

609,498 4,217 41,054 654,769 585,687

75,041 4,808 32,446 112,295 61,853

273,202 28,880 13,887 315,969 120,517

241,427 15,420 3,349 260,196 89,429

27,158 3,439 10 30,607 52,772

13,335,147 S  1,615,774 $  637,485 S  15,588,406 S  13,912,031

O

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

6
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

(with comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2019)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation

Disposals of fixed assets

Realized (gain) loss on investments

Unrealized (gain) loss on investments

Change in beneficial interest in trusts

Change in interest rate swap

Inclusion of new entity in consolidated financial statements

Changes In operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Refundable advance

Other liabilities

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchase of fixed assets

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities

Cash Flows From FInancing.Activities:

Payment of long-term debt

Net Cash Used By Financing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, Ending

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:

Interest paid

2020

2,451,124

462,316

13,432

(27,715)

(2,053,523)

(150,770)

210,173

226,820

(166,657)

79,161

(31,439)

98,966

(24,812)

2,529,309

(1.729)

3,614,656

(562,926)

199,162

(452,946)

(816,710)

(150,000)

(150,000)

2,647,946

177,479

2,825,425

276.878

2019

2,404,483

366,851

(129,565)

(2,805,664)

(157,510)

187,055

20,085

(247,678)

(299,140)

(19,161)

46,765

(78,303)

81,334

(671)

(631,119)

(511,347)

699,950

(318,582)

(129,979)

(140,000)

(140,000)

(901,098)

1,078,577

177,479

319,406

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

7
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1. Organization

Waypoint (the Organization) is a nonprofit organization, founded in 1850, that currently
aids more than 20,000 individuals, statewide, through an array of social services.

These services span the life cycle from prenatal to seniors, and can be grouped into the
following categories:

Early Chlldhoocl - Family Support & Education Services
Over 4,500 parents received education and support to improve parenting, strengthen
families, prevent child abuse and neglect, and ensure healthy development of children.
Over 500 young children starting life at a disadvantage received critical services to ensure
a good beginning and to optimize their chance for life-long success. Some of the programs
focused on early childhood include:

Early Support and Services

Early Support and Services provides family-centered support and therapies to infants and
toddlers who have developmental disabilities, delays or are at risk of developmental
delays. Services work to optimize babies' cognitive, physical, emotional and social
development, and chance for success. Services are provided in the child's natural
environment (home, day care, playground, etc.).

Home Visiting Services

A number of different prevention programs are offered in the home during those critical
early years of a child's life. A spectrum of services includes support to new mothers and
those struggling to parent; services for children with chronic health conditions; prenatal
services for babies being born at a disadvantage into low-income families; and programs
to encourage positive early parent/child relationships and promote optimal early
childhood development. Services are provided by nurses, social workers, developmental
specialists, occupational therapists, health educators, and home visitors.

Adoption

A licensed child-placing agency, the Organization has been forming families through
adoption since 1914. The Organization's adoption professionals provide home studies and
adoption services for families looking to adopt and provide counselling and support to
birthparehts who are considering the adoption option.
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Children, Youth, and Family - Intervention and Treatment Programs
The Organization contracts with the State of New Hampshire, the federal government,
and insurance companies, to provide a continuum of services for children, adolescents
and young adults. Programs are delivered in the home, schools, or community, and
include mental health counseling and substance abuse treatment, as well as a
complex system of family stabilization and preservation programs, child protection
services, and services for at-risk youth. Some of the programs include:

Foster care

The Organization works with the State of New Hampshire in placing children who have
been rescued from dangerous home environments, into safe, stable, loving homes. The
Organization recruits and supports foster families and works to facilitate permanency
for each child.

Home Based Services

The Organization has a number of programs provided in the family home that are
designed to help families who are struggling through daily life - where children are at
risk. Services work to thwart domestic violence, rebuild families, and to improve
family functioning. The Organization empowers families with the skills and resources
they need to provide for their children and become self-sufficient.

Runaway and Homeless Youth Services
The Organization is the sole provider of services for runaway and homeless youth in
Manchester and the Seacoast. A full spectrum of services features outreach to at-risk
youth that includes survival aid on the streets and basic needs fulfillment at the drop-
in center, as well as crisis intervention, educational and vocational advocacy, housing,
and case management. The Organization also provides behavioral health and
substance use counseling where needed. The Organization works with school systems,
police, and other agencies in addressing the needs of New Hampshire's homeless
youth.

Senior Care and Independent Living
The Organization helps seniors and individuals with chronic illness or disability to live
at home safely and with dignity, and to maintain quality of life. Under the title of Home
Care, services are delivered by homemakers, companions, personal care service
providers, and LNAs. The Organization's caregivers go to client homes to help with
everything from cooking and cleaning to personal hygiene, medication reminders,
mobility, travel to appointments, paying bills, help with daily tasks, and
communication with family members.

Other Programs

Camp Spaulding

Since 1921, Camp Spaulding has helped campers from all types of backgrounds enjoy
the benefits of a traditional, resident camp experience.
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The New Hampshire Childreti's Lobby

Established in 1971, the New Hampshire Children's Lobby is the advocacy wing of
Child and Family Services. The program's mission is to improve the lives of children
and families through legislative, judicial, and public policy initiatives. This combination
of advocacy and direct service practice uniquely positions the Organization to serve
the best interest of New Hampshire children.

The Children's Place and Parent Education Center

The Children's Place and Parent Education Center (TCP) in Concord, NH provides both
educational and social programs and services to strengthen and enrich the lives of
families with children, two months through six years old.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include Waypolnt, Child and Family Realty
Corporation, and The Children's Place and Parent Education Center, commonly
controlled organizations. All inter-organization transactions have been eliminated.

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year
summarized comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such
Information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019, from which
the summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term
purposes, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly liquid
financial Instruments invested for long-term purposes, including endowments that
are perpetual in nature, are excluded from this definition.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for
services and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is based
on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of
subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed
uncollectable.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier; and
a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have

10
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been substantially met. Amounts recorded as grants receivable represent cost-
reimbursable federal and state contracts and grants, which the incurrence of
allowable qualifying expenses and/or the performance of certain requirements have
been met or performed. The allowance for uncollectible grants receivable is based on
historical experience and a review of subsequent collections. Management has
determined that no allowance is necessary.

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within one year are
recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are expected to be
collected in future years are initially recorded at fair value using present value
techniques incorporating risk-adjusted discount rates designed to reflect the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. In subsequent years,
amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities. The allowance for uncollectable contributions is based on
historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of
subsequent collections. Contributions receivable are written off when deemed
uncollectable. Management has determined that no allowance is necessary.

Investments

Investment purchases are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of
donation. Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair values in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. Net investment return/floss) is reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Activities and consists of interest and dividend income,
realized and unrealized gains and losses, less external investment expenses.

The Organization maintains pooled investment accounts for its restricted
endowment. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are allocated to the individual
endowments based on the relationship of the market value of each endowment to
the total market value of the pooled investment accounts, as adjusted for additions
to or deductions from those accounts.

Beneficial Interest Held in Trusts

The Organization is the beneficiary of perpetual charitable trusts. The beneficial
interest in trusts is reported at its fair value, which is estimated as the fair value of the
underlying trust assets. Distributions of income from trust assets are restricted as to
use and are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions until expended
in accordance with restrictions. The value of the beneficial interest in the trusts is
adjusted annually for the change in its estimated fair value. Those changes in value
are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. The assets in the trusts
will never be distributed to the Organization.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased, and
at fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation is computed using the
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Straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 5 to 50
years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser
of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or
loss is included in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and
repairs that do not Improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are
expensed. Assets not in service are not depreciated.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for Impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may
not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from Its
use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is
recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were
no indicators of asset impairment in 2020 or 2019.

Interest-Rate Swap

An interest-rate swap is utilized to mitigate interest-rate risk on bonds payable. The
related liability is reported at fair value in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, and unrealized gains or losses are included in the Consolidated Statement of
Activities.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor or grantor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and
changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor {or certain
grantor) restrictions. The Board has designated, from net assets without donor
restrictions, net assets for a board-designated endowment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the
passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity while permitting the Organization to expend the income
generated by the assets in accordance with the provisions of additional donor-
imposed stipulations or a Board approved spending policy. Donor-imposed
restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time
has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has
been fulfilled, or both.
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Conditional promises to give - that is, those with a measurable performance or other
barrier and a right of return - are not recognized until the conditions on which they
depend have been met. The Organization records special events revenue equal to the fair
value of direct benefits to donors, and contribution income for the excess received when
the event takes place.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable contracts and
grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/ or the
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue
when the Organization has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or
grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported
as refundable advances in the Statement of Financial Position.

Revenues derived from providing program services are recognized as the services are
provided. Program services fees paid in advance are deferred to the period to which they
relate. All other amounts paid in advance are deferred to the period in which the
underlying event or rental takes place. Due to the nature and timing of the performance
and/or transfer of services, certain contract liabilities at December 31 of each year are
recognized In the following year.

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services,
administration, and fundraising and development activities; however, the
consolidated financial statements do not reflect the value of these contributed
services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. Donated professional services are recorded at the respective fair
values of the services received. No significant contributions of such goods or services
were received in 2020 or 2019.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities and Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.

Functional Allbcation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The Consolidated
Statement of Functional Expenses presents the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are
attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses
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require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that
are allocated include clerical, IT, and administration, which are allocated to program
and supporting services based primarily on a percentage of personnel costs related to
programs and supporting services.

Measure of Operations

The Consolidated Statement of Activities reports all changes in net assets, including
changes in net assets from operating and non-operating activities. Operating activities
consist of those Items attributable to the Organization's ongoing programs and
services and include the Organization's annual endowment transfer to support
operations. Non-operating activities are limited to resources outside of those
programs and services and are comprised of non-recurring gains and losses on sales
and dispositions, investment Income, changes in the value of beneficial interests and
interest rate swaps.

Income Taxes

Waypbint and the Children's Place and Parent Education Center have been recognized
by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal Income taxes under
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as organizations described in IRC Section
501(c)(3), qualify for charitable contribution deductions, and have been determined
not to be private foundations. Child and Family Realty Corporation is exempt from
federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an
organization described in Section 501(c)(25).

Each entity is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income
Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, each is subject to income tax on net income
that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to their exempt purpose. In

2020 and 2019, the Organizations were not subject to unrelated business Income tax
and did not file an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T)
with the IRS.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles requires estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may
differ from those estimates, and those differences could be material.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash accounts with financial
institutions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these accounts.
Credit risk associated with receivables is considered to be limited due to high historical
collection rates. Investments are exposed to various risks such as interest rate.
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market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain Investment
securities, It is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment
securities will occur in the near term and that such change could materially affect the
amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Although the
fair values of investments are subject to fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the
Investment Committee believes that the investment policies and guidelines are
prudent for the long-term welfare of the Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated financial
statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous,
market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions
about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs
that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting
entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset
or liability based on the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes
the inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs
other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and
market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations,
inputs are developed using the best information available in the
circumstances.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might
be categorized within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the
fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires
judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency
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of the asset and does not necessarily correspond to the assessment of the quality,
risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or liability.

New Accounting Standards to be Adopted in the Future
Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

In September 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958):
Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial
Assets, intended to improve transparency in the reporting of contributed nonfinancial
assets, also known as gifts-in-kind, for not-for-profit organizations. Examples of
contributed nonfinancial assets include fixed assets such as land, buildings, and
equipment; the use of fixed assets or utilities; material and supplies, such as food,
clothing, or pharmaceuticals; intangible assets; and recognized contributed services.
The ASU requires a not-for-profit organization to present contributed nonfinancial
assets as a separate line item in the Statement of Activities, apart from contributions
of cash or other financial assets. It also requires certain disclosures for each category
of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized. The amendments in this ASU should be
applied on a retrospective basis and will be effective for the Organization for the year
ending December 31, 2022. Early adoption is permitted. The Organization is currently
in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial
statements

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases. The ASU requires all leases
with lease terms more than 12 months to be capitalized as a right of use asset and
lease liability on the Statement of Financial Position at the date of lease
commencement. Leases will be classified as either finance leases or operating leases.
This distinction will be relevant for the pattern of expense recognition in the
Statement of Activities. This ASU will be effective for the Organization for the year
ending December 31, 2022. The Organization is currently in the process of evaluating
the impact of adoption of this ASU on the financial statements.

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments. The ASU requires a financial asset (including trade receivables)
measured at amortized cost basis to be presented at the net amount expected to be
collected. Thus, the income statement will reflect the measurement of credit losses
for newly-recognized financial assets as well as the expected increases or decreases
of expected credit losses that have taken place during the period. This ASU will be
effective for the Organization for the year ending December 31, 2023. The
Organization is currently in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this
ASU on the financial statements.
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3. Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the date of the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, are comprised of the following at December 31, 2020
and 2019:

Financial assets at year end:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Grants receivable

Contributions receivable

Investments

Beneficial Interest held In trusts

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions

Less:

Net assets with purpose restrictions to be met in less than a year
Donor-restricted endowment subject to spending policy rate
(4.00% In 2020 and 2019) and appropriation

Board-designated endowment

Less:

Board-designated endowment annual spending
policy rate (4.00%)

Total amounts not available to be used within one year

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures
over the next year

2020 2019

2,753,314 S  107,732

355,608 582,428

845,159 678,502

. 79,161

21,332,022 18,887,020

1,987,871 1.837.101

27,273,974 22,171,944

5,343,431

(626,270)

(109.172)

18,611,817

(S52.828)

22,666,978

4,829,280

(538,689)

(98,140)

15,894,841

(563,860)

19,523,432

5  4,606,996 5 2.648.512

Endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments and funds designated by
the Board to function as endowments. Income from donor-restricted endowments is
restricted for specific purposes. The portion of endowment funds that are perpetual
in nature are not available for general expenditure.

Board-designated endowment is subject to an annual spending rate as determined by
the Board. Although there is no intention to spend from board-designated
endowment (other than amounts appropriated for general expenditure as part of the
Board's annual budget approval and appropriation), these amounts could be made
available if necessary.

As part of its liquidity management plan, the Organization also has a $1,500,000
revolving line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.
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Accounts receivable consist of the following at December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Receivable Allowance Net Receivable Allowance Net

Fees for service S 357.308 (1,700) 355,608 S 584.728 $ (2.300) $—582.42B
S  584,728 $ (2,300) S 582.428Total

5. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses at year end relate primarily to prepaid insurance and contracts.

6. Investments

Investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis consist of mutual funds
totaling $21,332,022 and $18,887,020 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
During 2020 and 2019, the Organization recognized $2,269,978 and $2,935,229,
respectively, of net gains and losses on investments. Of those amounts, $2,269,978
and $2,935,229 was recognized on investments of equity securities held at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively..

Under the terms of the Organization's line of credit agreement (Note 9), the
Organization has agreed not to pledge these investments as security on any other
debt.

The Organization's policy is to avail itself of a Board-approved percentage of
investment income for operations with any remaining interest, dividends, or
appreciation reinvested. The spending policy approved by the Board of Trustees was
4.00% of the average fair market value of all investments over the previous twelve
quarters for 2020 and 2019.

As discussed in Note 2 to these consolidated financial statements, the Organization is
required to report its fair value measurements in one of three levels, which are based
on the ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the Organization's valuation
techniques. Level 1, the most observable level of inputs, is for investments measured
at quoted prices in active markets for identical investments. Level 2 is for investments
measured using inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets, quoted prices for the
identical asset in inactive markets, and for investments measured at net asset value
that can be redeemed in the near term. Level 3 is for investments measured using
inputs that are unobservable, and is used in situations for which there is little, if any,
market activity for the investment.
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The Organization uses the following ways to determine the fair value of its
investments:

Mutual funds: Determined by the published value per unit at the end of the
last trading day of the year, which is the basis for transactions at that date.

7. Beneficial Interest Held in Trusts

The Organization is the sole beneficiary of three funds that are administered by the
New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (NHCF). Income from the funds is to provide
assistance to children attending Camp Spaulding and for capital improvements to the
camp. The fund resolution provides that distributions from the funds can be made at
the discretion of the NHCF Board of Directors.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the fair market value of the funds, which
approximates the present value of future benefits expected to be received, was
$965,181 and $858,994, respectively.

In addition, the Organization has a split-interest in three charitable remainder trusts.
The assets are held in trust by banks as permanent trustees of the trusts. The fair value
of these beneficial interests is determined by applying the Organization's percentage
interest to the fair value of the trust assets as reported by the trustee.

Percentage

Trust Interest 2020 2019

Greenleaf 100% $ 395,121 $ 384,004
Spaulding 100% 350,378 332,956
Cogswell 50% 277,191 261,147

Total S 1.022,690 $ 978,107

Beneficial interest held in trusts is reported at fair value, which is estimated as the
present value of expected future cash inflows on a recurring basis. As discussed in
Note 2, the valuation technique used by the Organization is a Level 3 measure because
there are no observable market transactions.
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8. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment Is comprised of the following at December 31, 2020 and
2019:

2020 2019

Land and land improvements $ 1,114,949 $ 1,114,949

Buildings and improvements 9,003,702 8,862,063

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 908,672 843,251

Vehicles 86,019 107,581

Software 503,924 377,333

Construction in progress -

5,415

Subtotal 11,617,266 11,310,592

Less accumulated depreciation (5,179,686) (4,850,210)

Total $ 6,437,580 $ 6,460,382

9. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,500,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank. The
line of credit expired on June 30, 2020 and is payable on demand. The line is secured
by a first lien on accounts receivable, double negative pledge on all investments of the
borrower, and carries a variable rate of interest at the Wall Street Journal prime rate
(3.25% at December 31, 2020), adjusted daily. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
balance on this line of credit was $0 and $529, respectively.

10. Bonds Payable

During 2007, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (the
"Authority") sold $5,540,000 of its Revenue Bonds, Child and Family Services Issue,
Series 2007, and loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the Organization to refund Its
Series 1999 Series Bonds and to finance certain improvements to the Organization's
facilities. The Series 2007 Bonds were issued with a variable interest rate determined
on a weekly basis. Prior to issuing the Bonds, the Organization entered into an interest
rate swap agreement (the "Swap Agreement") with Citizens Bank of NH (the "Counter
party") for the life of the bond issue to hedge the interest rate risk associated with the
Series 2007 Bonds. The interest rate swap agreement requires the Organization to pay
the Counterparty a fixed rate of 3.915%; in exchange, the Counterparty will pay the
Organization a variable rate on the notional amount based on the 67% of one month
LIBOR. Counterparty payments to the Organization were intended to offset
Organization payments of variable rate interest to bond holders. Counterparty credit
worthiness and market variability can impact the variable rates received and paid by
the Organization, with the potential of increasing Organization interest payments. As
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a result, the cost of the interest rate swap for 2020 and 2019 is added to interest
expense in the Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses. The bonds mature In
2038 and can be repaid at any time.

The Organization is required to include the fair value of the swap in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, and annual changes, if any, in the fair value of the
swap in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. For example, during the bond's 30-
year holding period, the annually calculated value of the swap will be reported as an
asset if interest rates increase above those in effect on the date of the swap was
entered into (and as an unrealized gain in the Consolidated Statement of Activities),
which will generally be indicative that the net fixed rate the Organization is paying on
the swap is below market expectations of rates during the remaining term of the
swap. The swap will be reported as a liability (and as an unrealized loss in the Consoli
dated Statement of Activities) if interest rates decrease below those in effect on the
date the swap was entered into, which will generally be indicative that the net fixed
rate the Organization is paying on the swap is above market expectations of rates
during the remaining term of the swap. The annual accounting adjustments of value
changes in the swap transaction are non-cash recognition requirements, the net
effect of which will be zero at the end of the bond's 30-year term. At December 31,
2020 and 2019, the Organization recorded the swap liability position of $1,282,753
and $1,072,580, respectively. During 2009, there occurred a downgrading of the
credit rating of the Counterparty to the letter of credit reimbursement agreement,
which triggered a mandatory tender of the Series 2007 Bonds in whole and a tem
porary conversion of one-hundred percent of the principal amount to a bank purchase
mode under the terms of said letter of credit reimbursement agreement. Since it
became evident that the credit markets would not soon return to normalcy,
the Organization elected to convert the Series 2007 Bonds from a weekly rate mode
to a bank purchase mode. This new bank purchase mode created a rate period in
which the Series 2007 Bonds bear interest at the tax adjusted bank purchase rate of
68% of the sum of the adjusted period LIBDR (30 day) rate and 325 basis points. The
bank purchase mode commenced on July 31, 2009 and expired on July 31, 2014;
however, the expiration date was extended by the Counterparty and the Organization
had the option to convert back to the weekly rate mode. The Series 2007 Bond
documents require the Organization to comply with certain financial covenants. As of
December 31, 2020, the Organization was in compliance with these covenants.
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The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned bonds
payable:

Year Amount

2021 $ 160,000

2022 165,000

2023 175,000

2024 180,000

2025 195,000

Thereafter 3,040,000

Total $ 3,915,000

11. Deferred Loans - NHHFA

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated June 1,
2005. The face amount of the note is $550,000, does not require the payment of
interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate located in Dover,
New Hampshire.

Note payable to the New Hampshire Housing and Finance Authority dated May 22,
2007. The face amount of the note is $700,000, does not require the payment of
interest, and is due in 30 years. The note is secured by real estate located In
Manchester, New Hampshire.

12. Refundable Advance

Refundable advances totaling $2,529,309 at December 31, 2020 are included
primarily of start-up funds and flex funds received in advance from the New
Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services for community-based
voluntary services. Revenues will be recognized as services are performed.

13. Endowment Funds

The Organization's endowment consists of various individual funds established for a
variety of purposes. Endowment includes both donor-restricted funds and funds
designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments. As required by
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, net assets associated with endowment
funds, including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as
endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.
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Board-designated Endowment

As of December 31, 2020, the Board of Trustees had designated $18,611,817 of net
assets without donor restrictions as a general endowment fund to support the mission
of the Organization.

Donor-designated Endowments

The Board of Trustees of the Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the
fair value of the original gift as of the gift date for donor-restricted perpetual
endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
this interpretation, the Organization classifies as perpetually restricted net assets
(a) the original value of gifts donated to the endowment, {b)the original value of
subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the endowment made
in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time
the accumulation is added. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment
fund that is not classified as perpetually restricted is classified as net assets with donor
restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization
in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accor
dance with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors In making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:
(1) the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the purposes of the donor-
restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect
of inflation and deflation, (5} the expected total return from income and the
appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the Organization, and (7) the
Organization's investment policies.

Funds with Deficiencies

The Organization considers a fund to be underwater if the fair value of the fund is less
than the sum of (a) the original value of initial and subsequent gift amounts donated to
the fund and (b) any accumulations to the fund that are required to be maintained in
perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument. The
Organization complies with UPMIFA and has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending
from underwater funds in accordance with prudent measures required under the law.
The Organization had no underwater endowment funds at December 31, 2020 or
2019.

Investment Policy

The Organization has adopted an investment and spending policy to ensure a total
return (income plus capital change) necessary to preserve and enhance the principal
of the fund and, at the same time, provide a dependable source of support for current
operations and programs. The withdrawal from the fund in support of current
operations is expected to remain a constant percentage of the total fund, adjusted for
new gifts to the fund.
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In recognition of the prudence required of fiduciaries, reasonable diversification is
sought where possible. Experience has shown financial markets and inflation rates are
cyclical and, therefore, control of volatility will be achieved through investment styles.
Asset allocation parameters have been developed for various funds within the
structure, based on investment objectives, liquidity needs, and time horizon for
intended use.

Measurement of investment performance against policy objectives will be computed
on a total return basis, net of management fees and transaction costs. Total return is
defined as dividend or interest income plus realized and unrealized capital
appreciation or depreciation at fair market value.

Spending Policy

The Organization's spending policy rate in 2020 and 2019 was 4.00%, of the average
total endowment value over the trailing 12 quarters with a 1% contingency margin. This
includes interest and dividends paid out to the Organization.

The net asset composition of endowment net assets as of December 31, 2020 and
changes in endowment net assets for the year ended December 31, 2020 are as
follows:

with Oonof H«ttrtCtlOftf Total Net

Without Donor

R«tf<cik»ns

Endowment net iHetJ. be|lr>nin| of ve»r % IS.SM.Wl 5
Conlrlbwlloni 19.609
Appropriatiow from endowment (169.104)
Temporarv »pprop(i>tlon for

purpose-reitrteted net assets 538.689
Investment income, net 2.327.781

Endowment net isseii. end of v**' S_^^8j6ll^8^ S_

Purpose

Restricted

S38.689

(538.689)

Cumulative

Aporeciation

5  774.084

(30.058)

306,663

Perpetutlly

Restricted

1.679.406

<8051

Total

2.992,179

(30.058)

(538.689)

305,858

Endowment

Assets

18.887.020

19,609

(199.162)

2.633.640

5  1.050.689 S 1.678,601 5 2.729.290 5 21.341.107

The net asset composition of endowment net assets as of December 31, 2019 and
changes in endowment net assets for the year ended December 31, 2019 are as
follows:

With Donor Bestrictlorw Total Ne

Endowment net assets, beginning of yeai S
Contributions

Appropriations from ersdowment

Temporary appropriation for
purpose-restricted net assets

investment income, net

Endowment net assets, ertd of year S 15.894,841

Without Donor

Restrictions

14.007.444

66.325

(625.249)

(538.689)

2.985.010

Purpose

Restricted

538.689

538.689

Cumulative

Anofeclatloo

5  453.544

(74,751)

395,291

Perpetually
Rg"rtcled

1.679.406

Total

2.132.950

(74.751)

538.689

395.291

t

Endowment

Assets

16.140.394

66,325

(700.000)

3,380.301

S  774.084 5 1.679.406 5 2.992,179 S IB.887.020

14. Net Assets

Net assets without donor restriction are comprised of the following at December 31,
2020 and 2019:

24



DocuSign Envelope ID: 14BFFC6B-7403-4FA8-A7FF-28C49F037405

Undesignated net assets

Board designated endowment

Total

2020

$  104,268

18,611,817

$ 18,716,085

2019

$  884,271

15.894,841

$ 16,779,112

Net assets with donor restrictions are comprised of the following at December 31,
2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Camp

Child abuse prevention

Family counseling

Family resource center

Homecare

Human trafficking

IT and other projects

Teen and youth

The Children's Place

Endowment:

Accumulated earnings restricted by donors for:
General operations

Camp operations

Other purposes

Original gift restricted by donors for:
General operations

Camp operations

Other purposes

Total restricted endowment .

Not subject to spending policy or appropriation:
Beneficial interest In trusts

Total

67,747

67,750

148,763

93,616

88,552

99,787

60,055

626,270

219,094

307,937

523,658

1,050,689

133,407

548,183

997,011

1,678,601

2,729,290

1,987.871

71,265

98,265

9,398

34,569

111,587

10,000

108,522

95,083

538,689

176,893

198,902

398,289

774,084

133,407

548,988

997,011

1,679,406

2,453,490

1,837,101

$ 5,343,431 $ 4,829,280
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Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified
by the donors as follows for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Camp

Child abuse prevention
Family counseling
Family resource center

Homecare

Human trafficking
IT and other projects

Teen and youth

The Children's Place

Restricted-purpose spending-rate
distributions and appropriations:

General operations

Camp operations

Other purposes

Total

2020

123,125

16,954

30,691

391,706

35,000

308,910

218,467

59,697

1,184,550

30,058

30,058

2019

119,417

150,071

41,834

2,211

295,499

50,000

312,866

222,349

1,194,247

11,268

27,789

35,694

74,751

$  1,214,608 $ 1,268,998

15. Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed
c aims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable
funds. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot
e determined at this time, although the Organization expects such amounts, if any

to be immaterial.

16. Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)

In April 2020, the Organization received proceeds in the amount of $1,741,500 under
the Small Business Administration (SBA) Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The PPP
established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES
Act), whrch was enacted March 27, 2020, provides for loans to qualifying
organizations for amounts up to 2.5 times the average monthly payroll expenses The
loan and accrued interest may be forgiven after eight or twenty-four weeks providing
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the Organization uses the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll,
benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains certain payroll levels. The amount of loan
forgiveness will be reduced if the Organization terminates employees or reduces
salaries during the eight or twenty-four week period. Any unforgiven portion of the
PPP loan is payable over two or five years at an interest rate of 1%, with deferral of
payments for the first ten months. The Organization used the proceeds for purposes
consistent with the PPP requirements. As of December 31,2020, the Organization has
recognized the entire amount of the PPP funds as contribution income and
subsequent to year end the entire amount was forgiven.

17. Assistance to Individuals

Assistance to individuals is comprised of the following for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019 (rounded to the nearest thousand):

2020 2019

Payment to parents of foster children $  173 $  302

Housing assistance to youth at risk of homelessness 376 144

Gift cards provided to families during holiday season 50 59

Food for at risk youth 13 25

Other assistance such as medical, childcare.

transportation, and family activities 113 186

Total $  725 $  716

18. Defined Contribution.Plan

The Organization maintains a 403(b) Thrift Plan (the Plan). The Plan is a defined
contribution plan that all eligible employees may immediately make elective
participant contributions to upon hire. A pretax voluntary contribution is permitted
by employees up to limits imposed by the Internal Revenue Code and other limitations
specified in the Plan. Contributions made to the plan by the Organization for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 totaled $93,311 and $0, respectively.

19. Operating Leases

The Organization leases office space under the terms of non-cancellable lease agree
ments. The Organization also rents additional facilities on a month to month basis.
Rent expense under these agreements totaled $199,910 and $182,763 for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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20. Related Party Transactions

The Organization procures a portion of their legal services from a local law firm that
employs an attorney who also serves on the Organization's Board of DirectorT The
endpTo ''h Pei-sonally perform the legal services. For the years
4 505 a dT™\p^ f-- -'^ted parties was$4,505 and $15,680, respectively.

21. Commitments and Contingencies

COWD-19

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United 5tates (and across the globe) has resulted In

consT^Br'"'""""- temporary burthere is
COVirifon th"T''"*^ the impact of
rprm a I Organization s operational and financial performance will depend oncertain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak impact on
be predicted' A[1h;s'""°r?h ""^^^tain and cannotpredicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact the
Organization s financial condition or results of operations is uncertain.

22. Concentration of Risk

The majority of the Organization's grants are received from agencies of the State of

deo'IndT t fh ability to generate resources via grants isependent upon the economic health of that area and of the State of New Hampshire
An economic downturn could cause a decrease in grants that coincides Jth an
increase in demand for the Organization's services.

23. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 21, 2021, the date the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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WAYPOINT

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

S*i«rte and

Eraplofee beneflu
ftetlfetnem plan

related ceitj

reJinbunement
C^rxr^ctcd service}
Actour>tln(

AtsHtanee to InAiduals
ConerwdcaUons

Cordererees. conventions,
meetings

Oepredatton

In-kind contributions

InsmrKe

Interest

Letal

Mcrtbership dues

Msceilaneous
Occupancy

• Wntint and putiicailom

Rental and equlpmertt

maintenance

SuppOes

Travel

Total

family

Counsellna

i  2ZSJS9 S
22J77

U13

29JK7

U4a

4.767

309

2,712

3,171

634

L925

1.S6S

694

4J43

17.606

266

Teen

and

Toutti

677.712

167,069

6.268

96.060

26,162

54.403

314,696

33,035

12423

112,946

31,466

11,834

3447J

1.647

16444

168,966

4.493

27434

52J»1

15462

ChlWCare

Sendees

93.942 S

1.417

7,011

19

26.422

307

3449

2,766

56,706

CKId Abuse

Treatment Child

.  & Fstrily Abwa
Slrerwih^n.

freyentlcn

1.781.210 S  2430.660 6
261,949 336.682
12433 17.170

202.468 231,330
84.697 26.123
73.707 269.698

199.643 179.327 ■

40.739 46486

19.038 32,639
59.473 60.322

16,621
26,461 22444

6S.GD2 68.960

4,147 10.062

6.939 9.748
169.277 120,447
5,297 56.028

49,443 120482

41.149 108.064
3.641 4.776

farty

Interventlan

364.446

Homeeite

L972.400

259.129 3.106,013

39.668 234,327
3.179 5470

46.300 222.488
7,486 46.644

55.957 25.255

9409 2.162

5468 19409

8.SS7 13,770

19,196 19.1!9

4.379 9.367

40,624 14.662

948 7.296
1.061 9,776

2a386 70.817

2.797 3.340

32.374 8.426

6402 17461

619 2484

Adoptions
and

frejnancy
Counsrtine

5  69440

10.SS9

826

6.704

266

11.230

11.112

2.038

1.099

7.924

831

5.US

CNId

Advocacy

5  133.705

3.113

2.320

11.014

69

3.078

617

2.116

1.639

3.366

Summer

Cm

109

28

S—687436 6 2.7W.466 5 165419 $

18

69402

2

8

3462

2

1

265

1

Management

in.TK S 73.193 5

Total and
fttniam general

5  7.594.486 5 953.404
1476.199 14aS40

61.179 35.001
853.429 84.386
192.W9 SOS
524.432 113.606

34.60)
717.571 7.676
155.169 14.488

95.019 33492
409.3OS 53408
48.079

78.300 12482
236.318 37,781

14.795
25.360 2J0S
51.364 20.620

609.498 4417

7S441 4.808

273.202 28480
241.477 15.420
27.168 3.439

U435.147 4 1.615.774

fundrakltw

387.778 5
22.766

7,131

31.666

65

79,701

8429

2.623

2.779

1.660

940

41.054

32.446

13487

3,349

10

2020

Total

8.936467

1.239495

93,311

969.471

193.179

T17.738

34.620

726.246

176.486

129.432

462416

46479

93405

276.878

14.796

29.928

72.924

654,769

112.296

316,969

260.196

30.607



WAYPOINT

Consolidated Schedule of Operating Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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Salaries and wages
tmpl^ee t>enefits
Parrofl related costs

Mileage relmbunenieni

Contracted services
Accounting

Asslsunce to IndMduats
Commtmications
Conferences, eonvetttlons.
meetings

Oepredatfon

In-kirtd contrSxitlun}

Insurance

Interest

Legal

Mentership dues

Miscellaneous

Occupancy
Priming and publicaiiorts
Rental and ettulpnvent
maintenance

Supplies

Travel

Total

Family
Couns<-lli%g

Chad Abuse
Treatment

& Family
Strentthenlne

1.797,236

255,330

231.S36

230,949
86,374

Teen Adoptions
Child

artd and
Abuse Early

Vputh Pregnancy ChidPrevention SummerInterveminn TotalHomecare Coorcelifw392,683 SffiBfiaa811,578 Camo Proerami.s6S.m 359J4S36.382 1,7S8,488123,479 88,632 121,616224,471 7,14431,739 6,901.8385S,62S 198.67295,590 11,097 3.730195,954 1,22142,973 886.1214,517 220,77937.961 9,016 9,63166,254 62921.254 861.73310.066 63,07853,084 1.726 203138,533 25,490 425,99426,769 6,713 5,386 174,591 527.006231.226 355,852 115,0784,283 37,280 7,61437,355 35,003 6,9655.136 716,80016,498 1.949 1,313 453 139,2551.480 5,540 4.918 8,887 8688.408 9,187130,051 35049,246 16.98744.442 2728.408 48,4898,40845.647 4,8044U67 2.402 70,762 326,9314,078 11,053 21.357 17,108 3,377 88,01413.973 7,04439,926 70381348 76073363 21013,974 65,690(7,826) 13,974 7,985 3,993 1,996 2513325.699 73261330 2,425 8,235 385(28,712) 3,4663.212 1703,536 7678,736 1122.618 22.78958.958 33,253191,947 6,686163,147 234101,733 65811,823 30,2211.56S 63S04342 3,1053.924 3,91510,568 1,628US6 543.1365,734 1.020 951 158 29,318(692) 14,221 28.684 26,300

19.132 13,321
8.192 14,803

2.A23,407 S 2,668.407

433610,530 11.37332.348 2,754 1.414 756U85 89,7463,779 3,29722315 502 574
851 80,964

574,853 S 112 4381,891.710 424 50.614535,729 2,394,726 154.938 174,314 268,107 12086,191

Management
and

General FuisdraWnr

S  814,197 5  340.669
84383 24,372
72,205 27.088

931 199
74,153 54,573
32699

8358 4.741

5,949 3.600
39.920

9385 2,597
67374

20,671

1,916 3.152
14,859 2959
29,481 13370
2803 29,732

24.229 6,542

3,366 5,099
7 14<) 9

1.303.43R <t 517.402 ;

2019

Total

8,056,704

994376

961326
427,124

655,732

32699

716300
152,354

58338

366,851

88,014

77372

319,406
20,671

27,857

47,049

585387

61353

120317

89,429

52.772

13,912031
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Borja Alvarez do Toledo, IVI.Ed.

Professional Profile

■  A seasoned leader with more than 18 years of senior level non-profit management experience.
•  Strong business acumen with empi)asls on developing processes to ensure the alignment of

strategy, operations, and outcomes with a strength based approach to leadership development.
•  Collaborative leader using systemic and strategic framework In program development, supervision

and conflict rosolulion.

Professional Experience

Waypoint, formerly Child and Family Sen/Ices of New Hampshire
Manchester, NH December 2013- Present

" President and CEO

Responsible for program planning and development, Insuring (hat Vtfaypolnt meets the community
needs.

Advance the public profile of Waypoint by developing innovative approaches and building productive
relationships with government, regional and national constituencies.
Acts as advisor to the Board of Directors and maintains relationships with the regional Boards
Responsible for all aspects of financial planning, sustalnablilty and oversight of Waypolnt's assets
Work with Development staff and Board of Directors to design and Implement all fundralslng
activities. Including oullivation and solicitation of key Individuals, foundations and corporations

Riverside Communify Care
Dedham, MA 2009-2013

~ Division Director, Child and Family Services
Responsible for strategic vision, planning and Implementation of the programmatic. operatJonal and
financial sustalnablilty of a $17M division with moro than 300 employees.
In partnership with The Guidance Center, inc.'s board of dirBctors, played leadership role In
successfully merging with Riverside Community Oars, Ihrough a process that Involved strategic
pfenning, analysis and selection of a viable partner.
Provide supervision to managers using a strength based approach and a collaborative coaching
model to leadership development.

The Guidanco Center, Inc.
Cambridge, MA 1998-2009

~ Chief Operating Officer 2007 - 2009
Hired Initially as Director of an Intensive home-based family program and through successive
promotions became responsible for all operations in the organization.
Responsible for supervision of Division Directors, strategic planning and development of new
Inltiaiives.

De'/eloped strategic relationships with stale and local funders, and partnered \Mth community
agenctes to support the healthy growth of children and families.

Private Practice In Psychotiierapy and Clinical Consultation
Madrid, Spain 1992-1998
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Univorsiclad Ponfific(a do Comlllas
Madrid, Spain 1991 - 1998

'^Ac(Junct Faculty
Taught graduate level courses in Family and Couples Therapy program
Practioum program supervisor Supervised first year Master's Degree students through live
supervision In the troatment of multi-problem families.

Centre (VI6dIco-PsIcopedag6gico
Madrid, Spain 1994 -1997

-C//n/ca/ Coordlnator/DIroctor of Training.
•  Member of a multi-disciplinary team that provided assessment and treatment to families victims of

terrorism and had developed Post Traumatic Stress Disorder.

ITAD (Institute for Alcohol and Drug Treatment),
Madrid. Spain 1991- 1994

^ Senior Drug and Alcohol Counsoloi', Drug and Alcohol Program
•' Provided evaluation and treatment for chemically dependent adults and their families.
- Senior Family Therapist, Couples and Family Therapy Program
• Worked as a family therapist In the evaluation and treatment of adolescents and families.

Charles River Health Management
Boston, MA 1909- 1991

~ Senior Family Therapist, Home Basod Family Treatment Program.

Education

Graduate Cortlflcate of Business
Univorsity of Massachusetts, Lowell, 2000.
Master's Degree in Education
Counseling Psychology Program. Boston University, 1989.
B.A. In Clinical Psychology
Universldad Pontlficia de Comlllas, Madrid, Spain. 1980

Publications

2009 Ayers.S & Alvarez de Toledo, B. Community Based Mental Health wiih Children and FemDIes. in A
R. Roberts (Ed.) .Social Worker's DeskReforance (2"^ ed.).N6w York: Oxford University Press 2009
Topical Discussion: Advancing Community-Based Clinical Practico and Research: Learning In tho
Field. Presented at the 19"' Annual Research Conference; A System of Care for Children's Mental
Health; Expanding the Research Base, February 2006, Tampa, PL.
Lyman, D.R.: Slegei, R.; Alvarez de Toledo. B.; Ayers, S.; MIkuia, J. How to be little and still think
big: Creating a gmss roots, evidonco based system of care. Symposium presented at the 14"*
Annual Research Conference In Children's Mental Health, Research and Training Center for
Children's Menial Health, February 2001, Tampa, EL
Lyman, D.R., B. Alvamz de Toledo. The Bcology of Intensive community based Intervention, in
Lfghfburn. A.. P. Sessions. Handbook of Community Based Clinical Practice. Oxford University
Press, 2006, England.
Lyman, D.R., B. Alvarez de Toledo (2001) Risk factors end heatment outcomes In a stiategic
Intensive family program. In Newman, .0. C. Llberlon, K. Kutash and R. Friedman. (Eds.) A System
of Care for Children's Mental Health: Expanding the Research Base (2002), pp. 55-58. Research
and Training Center for Children's Mental Health, University of South Florida, Tampa, FL.

1994-96 Research papers and professional presentations in peer reviewed journals in Spain

2006

2001

2006

2001

Languages

Fluent In Spanish, French and Kalian.
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Gina Corey Ferrante, C.P.A.

Core Skills:

System • * Policies and * Streamlining
Integration Procedures accounting

Internal Controls * Budget processes

Audit Preparation and

Preparation Analysis

WorkExpcrience:

Community Teamwork. Inc. 2013-2019 Lowell, Massachusetts

Director of Finance and Accounting

Reporting to the CFO, manage staff in the accounting department and coordinating
annual budget for $90 niiiJion agency providing housing, WIC, Energy and Child Care
Services to low-income individuals

•  Prepare agency cost allocations
•  Ensure compliance witli agency's 150 federal, state and private contracts
•  Prepare agency budgets and analyze financial rc.sults
•  Analyze and improve accounting processes and fiscal controls throughout the

agency

•  Oversees the financial management of tlic organization and monitoring of
organizational performance and fiscal controls

•  Coordinate Annual Audit and review Accounting Pronouncements for

applicability

Michael F. Reillv. PC 2006-2013 Haverhill, Massachusetts

Audit Manager

•  Planned and managed the audit process for several non-public companies and not-
for-profit organizations including tlie Northern Essex Community College
Foundation, ARC of Northeast Haverhill and Simple Living, Inc.

• Worked with clients to help improve efficiencies and establish accounting
controls

•  Prepared tax reliuns for individuals and non-public and not-for-profit corporations
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Gina Corey Ferrante, C.P.A. Page 2

Digital Equipment Corporation 1987-1992 Acton, Massachusetts

Accouuting Systems Analyst

•  Designed and installed accounting systems for Digital and Digital customers
Internal Auditor

•  Audited departments internal to Digital in preparation for the outside auditors

Epsilon Data Management 1985-1987 Burlington, Massachusetts
Director ofAccounting
• Managed the monthly/quarterly closing process
•  Prepared financial statements (B/S, P&L, & Cash flows)
•  Performed analytical analysis

• Managed, supported and prepared the quarterly and year-end audit schedules

Ryder Systems. Inc. 1984-1985 Miami, Florida
Manager of Accounting
• Managed the monthly/quarteily closing process
•  Prepared fmancial statements (B/S, P&L, & Cash flows)
•  Performed analytical analysis

•  Prepared the quartei ly and yeai -end audit schedules

Price Waterhouse 1981-1984 Miami, Florida
Senior Accouutant

•  Planned, and managed the audit process for seveial non-piiblic companies
including tlie Miami Dolphins, and area construction companies

•  Prepared tax returns for individuals and small corporations during the busy season

Education:

Florida International University

Mastcj s of Science In Taxation

University ofMlami

BBAAccounting

Systems: Abiia Fund Accounting, Office (Word, Excel, PoweiPoiiit), Outlook,
QuickBooks, Profic
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COLLEEN M. IVES

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Proactive executive with a formidable record of driving systemic change and business expansion. Nimble
administrator with strategic planning, business process improvement, cost controls and performance management
experience. Collaborative leader with Inspirational and decisive management style who achieves exceptional,
rather than expected, results. Catalyst for open communications towards a climate of learning to benefit company
and individuals.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

WAYPOINT, Manchester, NH • 2018-Present
Statewide private nonprofit that works to advance the well-being of children and families through an array of
community-based services.

Chief Operating Officer
.  Oversees all aspects of program delivery including; fiscal and personnel management, quality assurance and

program development

ROCKPORT MORTGAGE CORPORATION, Gloucester, MA • 2008-2017
Leading national lender of US Housing & Urban Development Insured commercial loans in healthcare, multifamily
and affordable housing sectors.

Vice President, Operations & Quality Control
•  Report to principals with overall responsibility for achieving strategic objectives through oversight of the day-to

day operations of five multi-disciplinary underwriting teams by providing support at the transaclional level as
well as In the development of procedures and operating practices to match RMC's continued growth.

•  Ensure RMC'S compliance vwith their federally mandated Quality Control Plan through employee development
initiatives, monitoring of RMC'S operational practices while integrating new HUD directives into RMC'S existing
best practices.

IVES DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATES, Manchester, NH * 2005-2016
Consultancy providing strategic planning and leadership development to public, private and nonprofit companies
throughout New England.

Principal
Design and facilitate customized corporate retreats. Including strategic planning sessions, executive and Board of
Directors' training and development, creation or re-affirmation of vision, mission and values and efforts to re-align
leadership around key priorities and future direction of the organization. Integrate opportunities to shift
organizational culture to more open and candid communications.
•  Led an 18-month comprehensive change Initiative that:

o  Resulted In the development of a transition plan for the assimilation of an Interim Executive Director
including an operations plan that aimed to recalibrate the culture;

•  Transformed climate of accountability for a $55M client by Implementing Balanced Scorecard strategic
measurement system. Designed, coordinated and facilitated on-site internal and external analysis of 11 retail
locations in 9 states, analyzing threats and weaknesses In business to build a platform for growth.

CAREER NOTE: Concurrent with consulting enterprise (2006 ~ 2010), designed and taught introductory and upper level
psychology and sociology courses at Granite State College In Concord, Manchester and Portsmouth, New Hampshire.

COLLEEN M. IVES • Page 2 • cives2605@gmall.com
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING, Concord, NH • 2001-2005
Statewide nonprofit offering long-term care, employment, transportation, advocacy, and other community-based
services.

Acting Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer
Led internal operations. Including service and program delivery, finance, human resources, fundraising and
marketing. Transformed organization's culture by promoting a climate of excellence, systemic solutions and
learning that benefited the organization and Individual employees. Evaluated operational results and facilitated
business processes and controls that promoted efficiency and internal information flow. Developed short- and
long-range operating plans. Supported up to 14 management-level employees, staff of 90, and $13M annual
operating budget. Held complete performance management authority as well as autonomy to engage In private
and state/federal contracts.
•  Increased revenue by 78% with more effective grant administration, successful applications for new

competitive grants, initiating a comprehensive development / fundraising plan, and increasing the fee-for-
servlce lines of business,

•  Increased consumers served from 400 to 3,000+ individuals within three-year period by restructuring existing
programs, developing new programs and increasing program accountability with monthly management reports.

•  Established foundation for 36-month capacity building plan to enhance infrastructure and overall operations by
conducting full organizational audit and successfully presenting to Board of Directors.

•  Expanded services and leveraged long-term grant opportunity through company acquisition. Successfully
integrated organizational cultures and business practices, including human resource policies, management
teams and compensation/benefits.

•  Recommended, designed and Implemented internal controls and operating procedures for all departments
(Human Resources, Finance, Public Relations/ Development, Long-Term Care, Community Living and
Employment Services).

•  Increased efficiency, raised credibility of financial reporting and reduced headcount by Implementing state of
the art technology with expertise of retained IT consultant.

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION, SERVICES FOR
BLIND AND VISUALLY IMPAIRED, Concord, NH • 1992-2000

Statewide organization providing Registry of Legal Blindness, Sight Services for Independent Living, Vocational
Rehabilitation and a Business Enterprise program.

Statewide Director

Managed professional staff of 8 to deliver services that included 15 statewide rehabilitative support groups, career
counseling and vending machine/food service enterprises In State and Federal buildings.
•  Awai-ded $1.2M 3-year federal grant to provide peer support services in 15 locations across the state
•  Led Department to-highest rank in standards and benchmarks among 7 other regional offices.
•  Enhanced team atmosphere by integrating 4 distinct statewide programs into a cohesive unit.
•  Cultivated relationships and formal partnerships with various stakeholders in the statewide network of social

and human services and employment arenas.

EDUCATION

Doctorate In Human and Organizational Systems
Master of Arts in Human Development

Fielding Graduate University, Santa Barbara, California

Master of Arts/CAGS In Rehabilitation Counseling
Bachelor of Arts In Psychology and Philosophy
Assumption College, Worcester, Massachusetts
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ERIN J. KELLY

EDUCATION

Union Institute and University - Vermont College, Brattleboro. Vermont
2004-2006 Master of Arts. Psychology and Counseling

Gordon College - Wenham, Massachusetts
1997-2001 Bachelor of Arts. Psychology
1997-2001 Bachelor of Arts. Youth Ministry

LICENSE

Board of Mental Health Practice State of New Hampshire,
Licensed Clinical Mental Health Counselor. License #722

PROFESSIONAL APPOINTMENTS/MEMBERSHIPS/ACCOMPLISHMENTS
.  2018-Present New Hampshire Interagency Council on Homelessness - Governor

appointed _ . « . xi ^
2017-Present Co-Chair New Hampshire Homeless Youth Subcommittee
2016 Workshop Presenter National Runaway and Homeless Youth Grantee s Conference
2016 United States Family and Youth Services Bureau Enhancing Sustainability Project

2015-2018 New Hampshire Attorney General's Task Force on Abuse and Neglect
2014-Present New Hampshire's Human Trafficking Collaborative Task Force
2010-Present New Hampshire Balance of State Continuum of Care
2008-2017 New Hampshire Homeless Teen Task Force2008-Present Manchester Continuum of Care (Chair since 2016) ^ j
2012-2014 New Hampshire Attorney General's Commission on Human Trafficking and
Sexual Exploitation - representative of youth services
2011 -2013 New Hampshire State Suicide Prevention Council - Governor appointed
representative of youth services
2012 United States Family and Youth Services Bureau Focus Group on Runaway and
Homeless Youth Program Outcomes - Regional representative
2010-2012 New Hampshire HIV and STD Division Community Planning Group -
representative of youth services ^ . o

2008-2011 New Hampshire Alcohol, Tobacco, and other Drug Service Providers
Association - representative of youth prevention services

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

(formerly Child and Family Service of New Hampshire),
Manchester, NH ^ oahc\
.  Direct the operations of the Human Trafficking Program (started in 2016)
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.  Direct the operations of the continuum of programs serving runaway and homeless
youth Including Basic Center Programs. Street Outreach Programs. Drop-in Services.
Transitional Living Programs, and Maternity Group Home Programs statewide.

•  Provide all administrative and clinical supervision for Program Managers.
•  Provide oversight for a staff of 20.
.  Develop and implement strategic plan for alt programs including fajilita^ng staff

participation, presenting to agency operations team, incorporating feedback, and
identifying and bringing to fruition prioritized goals ^ ♦

.  Oversee local, state, and federal grant applications, reporting and contracts
•  Develop and manage program budgets
•  Provide program evaluation and outcome data

February 2010-January 2014 u » . mu

Program Manager - Child and Family Services of New Hampshire, Manchester. NH
•  Manage the day-to-day operations of programs serving runaway and homeless youth

including 2 Basic Center Programs. 2 Street Outreach Programs, and a drop-in facility.
•  Provide all administrative and clinical supervision for staff of ten
•  Develop and implement strategic plan for ail programs including facilitating staff

participation, presenting to agency operations team, incorporating feedback, and
Identifying and bringing to fruition prioritized goals

•  Facilitate the professional growth of staff by providing guidance around goal
development and relevant learning opportunities

.  Oversee locai, state, and federal grant applications, reporting and contracts
•  Develop and manage program budgets
•  Provide program evaluation and outcome data

November 2008-February 2010

Runaway and Homeless Youth Program & Student Assistance Program Supervisor-
Child and Family Services of NH, Manchester. NH

.  Supervised the day-to-day operations of a substance use prevention program m four
high schools,

•  Provided administrative and clinical supervision for staff of four
.  Established and maintained relationships with community organizations, key partners,

and school department administration
•  Completed proposals and reports for all federal grants and state contracts
•  Provided evaluation from an evidence-based intervention perspective

i  July 2006-November 2008 ^
i  Home-Based Family Therapist - Child & Family Services of NH, Manchester. NH
i  . Provided court-ordered family counseling services and case management to families
i  involved with the juvenile justice system or child protective services
I  . Advocated for youth and families in the educational system, court setting, and within
I  community services
'  • Provided referrals for relevant community services when appropriate

.  Developed and implemented client-centered treatment plans to address youtti and
family functioning and maintained on-going documentation to measure progress

Recent trainings & certifications, transcripts, job reviews, and references available upon request.
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Erin J. Kelly

•  npvploDed and implemented individual treatment plans t

.  Maintained clear and concise documentation of client s progress

Rumford Group Home, Inc., Roy House, Dixfield, ME

.  Provided direct care of sexual reactive males ages 7-12 who resided in residential

. MUherapeutic healthy, and professional relationships with the males In the program
:  RollmodeTed appropriate and healthy hygiene, interactions, touch, and coping
.  cl^^ed youth to participate in program and work on individual treatment goals

May 2001-August 2002
Crisis Stabilization Youth Worker- Rumford Group Home. Inc.
Turner Family Support center, Turner, ME
.  Provided direct care of youth ages 5-17 residing In short-term, crisis residential facility
•  Screened referrals for participation in the program *u
.  Provided strength-based emotional support and informal counseling

.  Develop"ed and'imptemented individual treatment plans for youth in the program

Recent trainings & cenifioations. transcripts, job reviews, and references available upon request.
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Waypoinl
SGIA Contract

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Borja Alvarez de.
Toledo

CEO 185,411 0% 0

Colleen Ives COO 120,120 0% 0

Gina Ferrante CFO 120,744 0% 0

Erin Kelly Division Director 76,294 21% 16.022
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Lori A. Shlbincttc
Commissioner

Chrislinc L. Saodoicllo
Dirctlor

STATE OF NEW HAJVIPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9474 l-«00-852.3345 ExL 9474

Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 wrwrw.dhhs.nh.gov

June 29. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTiON

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to amend existing Retroactive agreements with the vendors listed below to provide the
State Grant in Aid (SGIA) Homeless Assistance program, by modifying the agreements to have
individual price limitations instead of a shared price limitation for vendors listed in the table below
and terminating two agreements with vendors as indicated in the table below, and decreasing the
total price limitation by $417,396 from $7,300,000 to $6,882,604, with no change to the contract
completion dates of June 30, 2021, effective retroactive to July 1, 2020 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% General Funds.

below.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area

Served

Current

Amount

Revised

Amount

G&C Approval

Bridge House
Shelters

165288

-8001
Plymouth

NH

Shared $142,620 June 19.2019
Item #40

Community Action
Partnership of
Strafford County

177200

-8004 Dover NH

Shared $6,588 June 19,2019
Item #40

Community Action
Program, Belknap
and Merrimack

177203

-8003 Concord NH

Shared $0 0:

Concord Coalition

to End

Homelessness

267140

-8001 Bow NH

Shared $68,709 June 19,2019 .
Item #40

Cross Roads

House

166570

-B001
Portsmouth

NH

Shared $766,784 June 19,2019
Item #40

Families in

Transition, NH

157730

-8001

Manchester

NH

Shared $1,658,284 June 19,2019
Item #40

Friends Program 154907

-8001 Concord NH
Shared $174,710 June 19.2019

Item #40'

Helping Hands
Outreach Center

174226

-R001
Manchester

NH

Shared $209,516 June 19,2019
Item #40

Hundred Nights.
Inc

TBD Keene NH
Shared $220,854 June 19,2019

Item #40

. \
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Lakes Region
Community
Developers

156571

-B001 Laconia NH

Shared $88,761 June 19,2019
Item #40

Marquerites Place 157465

-8001 Nashua NH
Shared $186,836 June 19,2019

Item #40

My Friend's Place 156274

-8001 Dover NH
Shared $177,231 June 19,2019

Item #40

Nashua Soup
Kitchen & Shelter.
Inc

174173

-R001 Nashua NH

Shared $284,806 June 19,2019
Item #40

New Generation 177295

- 8001
Greenland

NH

Shared $162,400 June 19,2019

Item #40

NH Coalition

Against Domestic
and Sexual

Violence

155510

-8001 Concord NH

Shared $791,802 June 19,2019
Item #40

Salvation Army
Carey House,
Laconia

177627

-B001 Laconia NH

Shared $200,062 June 19,2019
Item #40

Salvation Army
McKenna House,
Concord, Eastern
Territory

177627

-8003 Concord NH

Shared $312,915 June 19,2019
Item #40

Seacoast Family
Promise

TBD Exeter NH
Shared $94,661 June 19,2019

Item #40

Southern NH

Sen/ices

177198

- 8006
Manchester

NH

Shared $0 June 19,2019
Item #40

Southwestern

Community
Services

177511

-R001
Keene NH

03431

Shared $527,563 June 19,2019
Item #40

The Front Door

Agency
156244

-8001
Nashua NH

03064

Shared $287,991 June 19,2019
Item #40

The Way Home,
Inc

166673

-8001
Manchester

NH

Shared $140,656 June 19,2019
Item #40

Tri-County CAP,
Inc

177195

-8009 Berlin NH
Shared $126,299 July 10. 2019

Item #16

Waypoint
177166

•8002
Manchester

NH

Shared $252,556 June 19,2019
Item #40

A01: August 28,
2019 Item #208

Total
$7,300,000
(Shared)

$6,882,604

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, with the authority to
adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because Department's business operations were disrupted by
COVID-19 which led to delays in the contract amendment review and approval process.

The purpose of this request is to modify the agreements to have individual price limitations
instead of a shared price limitation and to terminate agreements with two (2) Contractors, decreasing
the total price limitation by $417,396 frorii $7,300,000 to $6,882,604. The individual price limitations
will allow each vendor to more accurately budget and allocate funding to meet the specific needs of
the clients vwthin the community.

Approximately 4,500 individuals will t>e served during each State Fiscal Year of this contract.
The Contractors will provide emergency shelter to individuals and families who are homeless.

The Contractors will also provide case management services to individuals and families who are
currently in a shelter or those who are unsheltered to link them with housing, other essential services,
and provide ongoing case management. The case management services are personalized, based
on the strengths and support needs for each individual or family. Case management services include,
but are not limited to. housing navigation services, assistance with applications for housing, public
assistance, referrals for healthcare, including mental health or substance use treatment, education,
and employment supports.

The Department will monitor the contracted services by requiring the Contractors to submit
reports in the HMIS system that include the following:

•  Length of time persons remain homeless.
•  The extent to which persons who exit homelessness to permanent housing

destinations return to homelessness.

Successful exit to permanent housing destinations.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals and families
who are experiencing housing instability will not receive the essential "services and supports for
themselves and their families.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted.

Jk/NUffi A. Shibinette
^ Commissioner

The Oeparlmenl of Health and Human Seruices' Mission is to join eommunilies and families
in providing opporlunUies for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS
SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

OS-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF ECONOMIC AND HOUSING STABILITY, BUREAU OF HOUSING
STABILITY, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM
100% General Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $83,490

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $59,130

1 Sub Total .  $142,620

rommunitv Action Partnershio of Stratford County Vendor# 17721

'State Fiscal
Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731
Contracts for Program Services

$6,588

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $0

Sub Total $6,588

Community Action Proaram. Belknao and Merrtmack
Vendor # 1772i

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Numljer

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services SO

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $0

Sub Total $0

Cnnmrd Coalition to End Homelessness Vendor # 2671

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Numt>er

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $10,091

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $58,618

Sub Total $68,709

Cross Roads House Vendor# 1665"

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 .  102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $465,221

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $301,563

Sub Total $766,784

FITNHNH, Irc. Vendor # 1577:

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $1,037,418

2021 .  102/500731
Contracts for Program Services

$620,866

Sub Total $1,658,284

Attachment - Bureau of Behavioral Health
Financial Detail

Page l of 4
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

Friends Program Vendor # 1549."

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $88,971

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $85,739

Sub Total $174,710

Helping Hands Outreach Center Vendor #1742

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Riirtofif

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $114,908

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $94,808

Sub Total $209,516

Hundred Nights, Inc Vendor U

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 • Contracts for Program Services $117,376

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $103,478

Sub Total $220,854

Lakes Region Community Developers Vendor# 1565

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $32,587

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $56,174

Sub Total $88,761

Marguerites Place
Vendor# 15741

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $118,536

2021 , 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $68,300

Sub Total $186,836

My Friend's Place Vendor #1562"

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $115,144

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $62,087

Sub Total $177,231

Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter. Inc Vendor# 1741'

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Attachment • Bureau of Behavioral Health

Financial Detail

Page 2 of 4
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SFY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 5196,111

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $88,695

Sub Total $284,806

New Generation
Vendor# 1772!

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $97,357

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $65,043

Sub Total $162,400

NH Coalition Aqainst Domestic and Sexual Violence
Vendor# 1555-

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $363,109

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $428,693

Sub Total $791,802

Salvation Army Carey House. Laconia
Vendor # 17761

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $81,802

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $118,260

Sub Total $200,062

Salvation Army McKenna House Concord, Eastem Territory Vendor #1776;

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Numt>er

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $188,742

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $124,173

Sub Total $312,915

Seacoast Family Promise Vendor #

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

CuH'ent

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $53,270

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $41,391

Sub Total $94,661

Soulhem NH Services
Vendor# 1771

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

-Budget

2020 102/500731" Contracts for Program Services $0

2021 102/500731
Contracts for Program Services

$0

Anachment • Bureau of BeKavioral Health
Financial Detail

Page 3 of 4
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

"solSub'Tolal

Southwestern Community Services
Vendor# 1775-

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $302,869

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $224,694

Sub Total $527,563

The Front Door Aaencv
Vendor# 1562-

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $157,905

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $130,086

Sub Total $287,991

The Way Home, Inc
Vendor #1666'

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $84,482

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services
$56,174

Sub Total $140,656

Tri-County CAP. Inc Vendor# 1771!

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $87,864

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $38,435

Sub Total $126,299

Waypoint
Vendor# 17711

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current

Modified

Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services $166,817

.2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services
$85,739

Sub Total $252,556

Overall Total! $6.882.604

Attachment - Bureau of Behavioral Health

Financial Detail

Page 4 of 4
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.IcITrty A. iMcycrj
Commissionrr

Christine L SuntaniellO
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiyiSiON OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STA BILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax: 603-27M23Q TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

August 12, 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into a sole source amendment to an existing agreement with the vendor listed below
in bold to provide services to run away and homeless youth along with the State Grant in Aid (SGIA)
Homeless Assistance program services to youth by increasing the vendor's price limitation by $300,000
from an existing shared price limitation of $7,000,000 to $7,300,000, of which $7,000,000 will shared
among all vendors listed in the table below, with no change to the contract corripletion date of June 30,
2021, effective upon Governor and the Executive Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Ver)dor Name
Vendor

Number
Location

Current Price

Limitation

Increase - 1

(Decrease)
Modified Price

Limitation

Bridge House Shelters 165288-

B001

260 Highland
Street Plymouth

NH 03264

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$0 $7,000,000
(Shared)

Community Action
Partnership of Strafford
County

177200-

8004

577 Central Ave

Ste 10 Dover

NH 03820

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$0 $7,000,000
(Shared)

Community Action
Program, Belknap and
Merrimack

177203-

8003

2 Industrial Park

Drive Concord

NH 03302

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$0 $7,000,000

(Shared)

Concord Coalition to

End Homelessness

267140-

B001
22 Stack Drive

Bow NH 03304

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$0 $7,000,000
(Shared)

Cross Roads House
166570-

8001

600 Lafayette
Road

Portsmouth NH

03801

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$0 $7,000,000
(Shared)

Families in Transition,
NH

157730-

B001

122 Market

Street

Manchester NH

03101

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$0 $7,000,000
(Shared)

Friends Program 154987-

8001

202 N State

Street Concord

NH 03301

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$0 $7,000,000
(Shared)

Helping Hands Outreach
Center

174226-

R001

50 Lowell Street
Manchester NH

03101

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$0 $7,000,000
(Shared)

Hundred Nights. Inc

-

TBD
17 Lamson

Street Keene

NH 03431

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$0 $7,000,000
(Shared)
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 4

Lakes Region
Community Developers

156671

B001

656 Union Ave

Laconia NH

03246

$7,000,000
(Shared) ,

$0 $7,000,000
(Shared)

Marguerites Place 157465

B001

87 Palm Street

Nashua NH

03060

$7,000,000
(Shared)

My Friend's Place 156274

B001

368 Washington
Street Dover NH

03820

$7,000,000
(Shared)

Nashua Soup Kitchen &
Shelter. Inc

174173

R001

2 Quincy Street
Nashua NH

03061

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$0

$0

$0

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$7,000,000
(Shared)

New Generation 177295

. B001

9 Tide Mill Road
Greenland NH

03840

$7,000,000
(Shared)

NH Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual

Violence

155510

B001

One Hundred

North Main

Street Concord

NH 03301

$7,000,000
(Shared)

Salvation Army Carey
House. Laconia

177627

B001

177 Union Ave

Laconia NH

03246

$7,000,000
(Shared)

Salvation Army
McKenna House.

Concord, Eastern
Territory

177627

B003

58 Clinton

Street Concord

NH 03301

$7,000,000
(Shared)

Seacoasl Family
Promise TBD

27 Hampton

Road Exeter NH

03833

$7,000,000

(Shared)

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$7,000,000
(Shared)

Southern NH Services 177198

B0d6

40 Pine Street

Manchester NH

03108

$7,000,000

(Shared)

Southwestern

Community Services
177511

R001

63 Community
Way Keene NH

03431

$7,000,000
(Shared)

The Front Door Agency 156244

B001

7 Concord

Street, Nashua
NH 03064

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$0

$0

$0

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$7,000,000
(Shared)

The Way Home, Inc
166673

B001

214 Spruce
Street

Manchester NH

03103

$7,000,000
(Shared)

Tri-County CAP. Inc 177195

B009

30 Exchange
Street Berlin NH

03570

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$0

$0

Waypoint

177166

B002

464 Chestnut

Street

Manchester NH

03105

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$300,000

Total

$7,000,000

(Shared)
$300,000

$7,000,000

(Shared)

$7,000,000
(Shared)

$7,300,000
of which

($7,000,000 Is
shared)

$7,300,000
of which

($7,000,000 Is
shared)
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 3 of 4

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in State
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget
Office, If needed and justified.

During each State Fiscal Year of the contract, there is a shared price limitation among the vendors
of $3,500,000. Consequently; there is no guaranteed minimum or maximum amount of client or service
volume. No additional funds are being added to the existing appropriation.

Waypoint will receive $150,000 per state fiscal year for the provision of services to run away and
homeless youth, this funding is not subject to the shared price limitation and is solely allocated for this
vendor.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF ECONOMIC AND HOUSING STABILITY, BUREAU OF HOUSING
STABILITY. HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM '

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account
Class

Title
Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase 1

(Decrease)
Modified

Current

Amount

2020

102-500731 Contracts

for Prog
Svc

T6D $3,500,000 $0.00 $3,500,000

2021

102-500731 Contracts

for Prog
Svc

T8D $3,500,000 $0.00 $3,500,000

MM? Subtotal $7,000,000 $0.00 $7,000,000

05-95-45-450010-61460000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS; DIVISION OF ECONOMIC AND HOUSING STABILITY. BUREAU OF FAMILY
ASSISTANCE, TEMP ASSISTNC TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account
Class

Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

increase 1

(Decrease)
Modified

Current

Amount

2020

502-500891 Payments
to

Providers

TBD $0.00 $150,000 $150,000

2021

502-500891 Payments
■  to

Providers

TBD
I

$0.00 $150,000 $150,000

Subtotal $0.00 $300,000 $300,000

WKKKSBMwmm Total $7,000,000 $300,000 $7,300,000

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because Waypoint has a specialized program that focuses on
individuals of 18 and 24 years old. Waypoint works with youth and their families, to help reconnect
and/reunify youth with their families or relatives.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 4 of 4
I

The purpose of this request is to ensure services are available to youth who are homeless, with
a focus on reunifying them with their family. Waypoint is the only agency in NH that provides runaway
and homeless youth services for youth between the ages of 18 and 24 years old. Services provided
Include a drop-in youth center where Waypoint provides individualized case management to homeless
and at-risk youth, homeless street outreach, and transitional living prograrhs. Waypoint is also the
centralized entry point for youth experiencing homelessness in NH-

Approximately 4,500 individuals will be served during each slate fiscal year of the contracts for
State Grant in Aid to Homelessness with approximately one hundred fifty (150) youths served by
Waypoint in order to provide specialized programs for youth statewide.

All Contractors provide emergency shelter to individuals and families who are homeless. The
Contractors provide case management services to individuals and families who are currently in a shelter
or those who are unsheltered to link them with housing, other essential services, and provide ongoing
case management. The case management services are personalized, based on the strengths and
support needs, for each individual or family. Case management services include, but are not limited to,
housing navigation services, assistance with applications for housing, public, assistance, referrals for
healthcare, including mental health or substance use treatment, education, and employment supports.
Additionally Waypoint will provide a specialized service.to persons under the age of eighteen (18) in order
to increase reconnection and reunification with children, families and relatives.

The Department will monitor contractor performance through reports available from the HMIS
system as follows:

•  Length of time persons remain homeless.

•  The extent to which persons who exit homelessness to permanent housing
destinations return to homelessness.

•  Successful exit to permanent housing destinations.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement has the option to extend for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, youth who are experiencing
housing instability will not receive the essential services and supports for themselves and their families.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from U.S. Department of Health
& Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
CFDA # 93.558 FAIN# 18NHTANF.

ctfull itted

jy A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deportment of HeoUh and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid Homeless Assistance Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the State Grant in Aid Homeless Assistance Program

This 1*' Amendment to the State Grant in Aid Homeless Assistance Program contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Waypoint, (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 464 Chestnut Street
Manchester, NH 03105.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019. (Item MO), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work or terms
and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these
services; and

WHEREAS, ail terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #1 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as foiiovys:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$7,300,000.

2. Delete Exhibit A. Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1,
Scope of Services.

3. Delete Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment in Its entirety and replace vnth
Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

4. Add Exhibit 6-1, Amendment #1 Budget Sheet.

5. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #1 Budget Sheet.

Waypoint Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

RFA-2020-DEHS-01-24-A01 Page 1 of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid Homeless Assistance Program

Wi

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Oat tame; Christine tS^ntaniello
Title: Director

Waypoint

NameT^ At f i)
Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of }v/eoJ County of \]',\\^harouj
undersigned officer, pfersonally appeared the personl'c

J
id

-, on Jolu 3^^'^ , before the
*^1entified directly^^bove, or satisfactorily proven to

be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature of Ndrary Public or JustiJustice of the Peace

isliMle jl- V\l
lame and Title of NotaName and Titli^ of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: 7/// /

S  : exrto V; .5
5 ''-U JULYU. ffsiuS
^  2023

Waypoint

RFA-2020-OEHS-01-24.A01

Amendment

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant in Aid Homeless Assistance Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name>

Title:
77

I hereby certify thai the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

WaypoinI

RFA.2020-DEHS-01.24-AC1

Amendmenl #1

Page 3 of 3
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid Homeless Assistance Program

Exhibit A, Amendment #1

•.-r

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2.The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor
as a Subrecipient. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall provide emergency shelter services to individuals and
families who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless statewide. Including
but not limited to:

2.1.1. Ensuring temporary shelter (non-permanent shelter) is designed to meet
the basic needs of individuals and families who have no other housing '
options and who would otherwise be without a place to sleep.

2.1.2. Ensuring basic needs of each individual are met that at a minimum include
a safe, protective, and sanitary environment, on a short-term emergency
or transitional basis, as described In RSA 126-A:26.

2.1.3. Operating a facility in accordance with Exhibit C-1 Operation of Facilities:
Compliance with Laws and Regulations that includes at a minimum:

2.1.3.1. Building maintenance and repair.

2.1.3.2. Security systems.

2.1.3.3. Heating and possible cooling equipment.

2.1.3.4. Property and business insurance.

2.1.3.5. Utilities and furnishings.

2.1.3.6. Amenities such as bathrooms.

2.1.4. The Contractor shall provide Case Management Services to assist
individuals and families who are homeless or at-risk of becoming
homeless to access and apply for other services with the goal of obtaining
permanent housing. Activities include but are not limited to:

Waypoint Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Conlractorlnitials

RFA-2020-OEHS-01-STATE-24-A01 Page 1 Of 6 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant in Aid Homeless Assistance Program

Exhibit A, Amondmont #1

2.1.4.1. Assessing individuals and families' needs for well-being and
obtaining housing, and developing an individualized plan to meet
those needs.

2.1.4.2. Developing an Individualized plan with the types of services and
assistance programs to meet their needs.

2.1.4.3. Assisting individuals and families with accessing emergency shelter.

2.1.4.4. Assisting individuals and families with applying for and accessing
permanent housing.

2.1.4.5. Assisting individuals and families with applying for mainstream
benefits, including, but not limited to, SSI, TANF, SNAP, Medicaid,
Veteran and other State or Federal benefits.

2.1.4.6. Assisting individuals and families with accessing community
providers and supports, for, including but not limited to. mental health
services, substance use treatment, medical care, employment,
veterans benefit, financial and food assistance, and education

supports.

2.1.5. The Contractor shall comply with the program requirements, which
include but are not limited to;

2.1.5.1. Following best practices in providing emergency shelter services in
accordance with the National Alliance to End Homelessness. "The
Five Keys to Effective Emergency Shelter" that include but are not
limited to:

2.1.5.1.1. Housing First Approach

2.1.5.1.2. Safe and appropriate diversion

2.1.5.1.3. Immediate and low-barrier access

2.1.5.1.4. Housing-focused, rapid exit services

2.1.5.1.5. Data to measure performance

2.1.5.2. Participating in Coordinated Entry as required by the State, a
centralized or coordinated process designed to get people in
permanent support housing, in accordance with the NH BOS CES
Policy Manual adopted on January 23, 2018, that is herein
incorporated by reference and as amended.

2.1.5.3. Accepting homeless and at risk of homelessness individuals and
families regardless of their sobriety and other conditions such as but
not limited to mental health services, medication stability, sexual
orientation, vulnerability to illness, vulnerability to victimization,
vulnerability to physical assault, racial equality, marital status or
ability to pay program fee, in accordance with federal Housing Urban
Development (HUD) guidance for low threshold eligibility p^rams.

Waypoinf Exhibit A. Amendment #1 Contractor Inilials

RFA-2020-DEHS-01-STATE-24-A01 Page 2 of 6 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid Homeless Assistance Program

Exhibit A, Amendment il^1

2.1.5.4. Entering data into the Homeless Management Information System
(HMIS) to collect client-level data and data on the provision of
housing and services to homeless individuals and families, in
accordance with the federal HUD data, standards for emergency
shelter, unless restrictive by law such as for domestic violence. The
data standards may be found at: httD://nh-
hmls.orQ/sites/default/files/reference/NH-HMIS-PnP-112018.Ddf

2.1.5.5. Agreeing to on-site monitoring, on an annual basis, to review
compliance, progress, and performance, which includes, but is not
limited to:

2.1.5.5.1. Reviewing policies and procedures for services
provided.

2.1.5.5.2. Reviewing financial analyses.

2.1.5.5.3. Reviewing for compliance with safety and hazard
requirements.

2.1.5.5.4. Reviewing Data and HMIS entry standards.

2.1.5.6. Complying with New Hampshire Administrative Rules He-M 314
Rights of Persons Using Emergency Shelters.
httD://www.aencourt.state.nh.us/rules/state aoencies.he-

m300.html and ensuring that individuals understand their rights.

• 2.2. Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (JANF)

2.2.1. The Contractor shall ensure services are provided to individuals and
families that are at or below two hundred percent (200%) of the current
Federal Poverty Level (FPL) and that appropriate use of TANF funds
remains consistent with the Federally mandated purposes of the TANF
program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which include but are not limited to:

2.2.1.1. Providing assistance to families in need so that children may be
cared for in their own homes or in the homes of relatives;

2.2.1.2. Ending the dependence of parents on government benefits by
promoting job preparation, work and marriage;

2.2.1.3. Preventing and reducing the incidence of out-of-wedlock
pregnancies; and

2.2.1.4. Encouraging the formation and maintenance of two parent families.

2.2.2. The Contractor shall provide services that include but are not limited to:

2.2.2.1. Case management and counseling,

2.2.2.2. Peer Support.

2.2.2.3. Training and education for job retention and advancement.

Waypoint Exhibit A. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

RFA-2020-DEHS-01-STATE-24-A01 Page 3 of 6 Date
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant in Aid Homeless Assistance Program

Exhibit A, Amendment #1

2.2.2.4. Other employment-related services that do not provide basic Income
support as defined in 45 CFR 261.31 (a)(1).

2.2.2.5. Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health
insurance.

2.2.2.6. Crisis intervention and supportive services to assist the individuals in
meeting their immediate needs to ensure safety is met, including any
immediate housing needs

2.2.2.7. Prevention and education to reduce the incidences of out-of-wedlock

pregnancies and promote health relationships.

2.2.2.8. Health information and harm reduction information regarding safe
lifestyle choices.

2.2.2.9. Individual assessment of current needs.

2.2.2.10. Health. Mental Health and Substance Use Treatment and
Counseling not covered by Medicaid or other insurances.

2.2.3. The Contractor shall provide services limited to four (4) months per client
that include but are not limited to:

2.2.3.1. Housing assistance.

2.2.3.2. Legal assistance.

2.2.3.3. Child care and transportation. If the parent is employed, child care
and transportation services may be extended based on client need.

2.2.4. The Contractor shall provide material support for up to four (4) months for
each client served, which may include but is not limited to:

2.2.4.1. Food.

2.2.4.2. Clothing.

2.2.4.3. Shelter (Including rental assistance).

2.2.4.4. Utilities.

2.2.4.5. Household goods.

2.2.4.6. Personal care items.

2.2.4.7. Laundry.

2.2.5. The Contractor shall maintain TANF records of eligibility, which consist of
any supporting documentation that indicates the client is below the stated
Federal Poverty Level (FPL).

2.2.6. The Contractor shall ensure all applicants provide supporting
documentation indicating they have applied for or are receiving benefits
through the Income Eligibility Verification System (lEVS), which is part of
the NH Easy NH Medicaid Portal. Supporting documentation may include

X'Waypoint Exhibit A. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

RFA-2020-DEHS-01-STATE-24-A01 Page 4 of 6 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid Homeless Assistance Program

Exhibit A, Amendment

official confirmation that an applicant or client is receiving a benefit
including but not limited to:

2.2.6.1. TANF cash assistance.

2.2.6.2. Food Stamps

2.2.6.3. Medicaid.

2.2.6.4. State medical assistance

2.2.6.5. Child care subsidy .

2.2.7. The Contractor shall assist clients who are not receiving any of the
benefits outlined in Subsection 2.2.6 with applying for assistance through
the NH Easy NH Medicaid Portal to ensure they meet the lEVS
requirements for TANF funding utilization.

2.2.8. The Contractor shall submit a corrective action plan to the Department
within ten (10) days of receiving the notice of decision that the Contractor
is found out of compliance with TANF reporting requirements listed in
Subsection 3.4., below, time frames of providing any reporting, or any
other aspects of the TANF provisions listed. This corrective action plan will
be reviewed and overseen by the Department until compliance is
regained.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department, with the
corresponding monthly invoice for payment that includes the aggregate number
of individuals served, in accordance with Subparagraph 2.1.5.4 above, no later
than the 10'" day of the following month.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit an annual report to the Department, with the
aggregate number of individuals served in accordance with Subparagraph 2.1.2.4,
beginning September 30. 2020 and each year thereafter.

3.3. The Contractor shall report TANF Maintenance of Effort spending as outlined in
TANF Federal Regulation 45 CRF 263.1 and 263.2.

3.4. The Contractor shall provide monthly TANF reports through email to the State that
include but are not limited to:

3.4.1. Aggregate details regarding services provided to participants on a
Department-provided form.

3.4.2. A brief narrative identifying barriers experienced when providing services
in the previous month.

3.4.3. A plan to address barriers identified in Subparagraph 3.3.2., in the
following month.

4. Performance Measures

Waypolnt Exhibit A. Amendment#! Contractorinitials
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Humart Services
State Grant in Aid Homeless Assistance Program

Exhibit A, Amendment <111

4.1. The Contractor's performance shall be measured to ensure that the data is
entered into HMIS in accordance with Section 2.1.5.4, above, and clients are
receiving the assistance needed to meet their goals.

4.2. The Contractor shall be monitored for performance through reports available from
the HMIS system that include but are not limited to;

4.2.1. Length of time persons remain homeless.

4.2.2. The extent to which persons who exit homelessness to permanent housing
destinations return to homelessness.

4.2.3. Successful exit to permanent housing destinations.

4.3. The Contractor shall maintain TANF records of eligibility for 100% ofTANF-eligible
clients.

Waypoinl Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sorvicos
State Grant in Aid to Homeless Program

Exhibit B. Amendment #1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This agreement is one of multiple agreements that will serve the State Grant in Aid to
Homeless program. No maximum or minimum ciient and service volume is guaranteed.
Accordingly, a portion of the total price limitation, which is $7,300,000 as identified in Block
1.8 of Form P-37. General Provisions is shared among all agreements as follows;

1.1. $7,000,000 in 100% General Funds for the State Grant In Aid (SGIA) Homeless
Assistance program across all vendors, statewide not to exceed:

1.1.1. $3,500,000 for State Fiscal Year 2020.

1.1.2. $3,500,000 for State Fiscal Year 2021.

1.2. The Department will reimburse the Contractor at a rate of $11.00 per individual per day.
The rate includes all services provided in this agreement on behalf of the individual per
day.

2. Specific to Wavooint. a portion of the total price limitation, which is $7,300,000 as identified
in Block 1.8 of Form P-37, General Provisions is 100% Federal Funds for Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) as follows:

2.1. Federal funds in the amount of $300,000 are available, contingent upon meeting the
requirements of the Catalog for Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558, Temporary
Assistance to Needy Families, Identification Number (FAIN) 19NHTANF, in the amount of:

2.1.1. $150,000 for State Fiscal Year 2020.

2.1.2. $150,000 for State Fiscal Year 2021.

2.2.The Contractor shall submit invoices as indicated in Section 3, below in accordance with
budget line items specified in Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1 and Exhibit B-2 Amendment #1
Budget.

3. Payments shall be made as follows:

3.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement request
for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month, for the previous
month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for the amount of each
requested disbursement along with a payment request form and any other documentation
required, as designated by the State, which shall be completed and signed by the
Contractor.

3.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 5.4. Exhibit B..
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:
housinQsuPDortsinvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov

3.3. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records-and any additional financial

Waypoint 'Ia
Exhibii B. Amendment #1 Conlractof Initials OMi
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid to Homeless Program

Exhibit B. Amendment #1

information if requested by the State to verify expenses. The Contractor shall return
completed invoices, as provided by the Department, no later than thirty (30) days from the
date services are provided.

3.4. The Contractor shall submit completed invoices to:

State Grant in Aid to Homeless Program.
Bureau of Housing Supports
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Economic and Housing Stability
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Phone: 603.271-9196

3.5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are
available.

4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that payment under
this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncorhpliance with any
Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this agreement.

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified
in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

Waypoint
r,

Exhibit B. Amendment Contractor inlliais
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Jeffrey A. Meyen -
Conmbiloner

Cfiristiec U SantBOiclIo
Director

JUN07'19Pti 1:49 DflS

45 /
STATE OF HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271.9474 |.m-aS2.334SEit9474

Fax: 603-27M230 TDD A«oj: 1.800-735-2964 w*r»*.dhhj.nh.gov

June 7. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and Housirfg
Stability, to enter into agreements v/ith the vendors listed below in an amount not to exceed $7,000,000.
to provide the State Grant in Aid (SGIA) Homeless Assistance program, effective July 1, 2019, through
June 30. 2021. upon Governor and the Executive Council approval. 100% General Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor Number Location

Bridge House Shelters 165288 - B001 260 Highland Street Plymouth NH 03264

Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County

177200- 6004 577 Central Ave Sle 10 Dover NH 03820

Community Action Program. Belknap and
Merrimack

177203-B003 2 Industrial Park Drive Concord NH 03302

Concord Coalition to End Komelessness 267140-B001 22 Stack Drive Bow NH 03304

Cross Roads House 166570 - B001 600 Lafayette Road Portsmouth NH 03801

Families in Transition. NH 157730-B001 122 Market Street Manchester NH 03101

Friends Program 154987 - B001 202 N State Street Concord NH 03301

Helping Hands Outreach Center 174226 - R001 50 Lowell Street Manchester NH 03101

Hundred Nights. Inc TBD . 17 Lamson Street Keene NH 03431

Lakes Region Community Developers 156571 -BD01 658 Union Ave Laconia NH 03246

Marguerites Place 157465- BD01. 87 Palm Street Nashua NH 03060

My Friend's Place 156274;; BOD 1 368 Washington Street Dover NH 03820

Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, inc 174173-R0D1 2 Quincy Street Nashua NH 03061

New Generation 177295 -8001 9 Tide Mill Road Greenland NH 03840

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence

155510- B001 One Hundred North Main Street Concord
NH 03301

/
v<
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Salvation Army Carey House. Laconta 177627 - 8001 177 Union Ave Laconia NH 03246

Salvation Army McKenna House. Concord.
Eastern Territory

177627-B003 58 Clinton Street Concord NH 03301

Seacoast Family Promise TBD 27 Hampton Road Exeter NH 03833

Southern NH.Services 177190- 0006 40 Pine Street Manchester NH 03108

Southwestern Community Services 177511 -R001 63 Community Way Keene NH 03431

The Front Door Agency 156244-BOOl 7 Concord Street, Nashua NH 03064

The Way Home. Inc 166673 - 8001 214 Spruce Street Manchester NH 03103

1 Waypoint 177166-8002 464 Chestnut Street Manchester NH 03105

Total: $7,000,000

Funds are available in the following account(s). and are ariticipated to be available in State Fiscal
Years 2020 and 2021, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office. During each State Fiscal Year of
the contract, there is a shared price limitation among the vendors of $3,500,000. Consequently, there is
no guaranteed minimum or maximum amount of client or service volume.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUfWlAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF ECONOMIC AND HOUSING STABILITY, BUREAU OF HOUSING
STABILITY, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $3,500,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $3,500,000

Total $7,000,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to administer the Slate Grant in Aid (SGIA) Homeless Assistance
■program. The Contractors listed above shall be required to either provide emergency shelter services
and case management services or case management services only. The Department will reimburse the
Contractor at a rate of $11.00 for services provided to each individual per day.

Approximately 4,500 individuals will be served during each State Fiscal Year of this contract.
The Contractors will provide emergency shelter to Individuals and families who are homeless.

The Contractors will also provide case management services to individuals and families who are currently
in a shelter or those who are unsheltered to link them with housing, other essential senrices, and provide
ongoing case management. The case management services are personalized, based on the strengths
and support needs for each individual or family. Case management services include, but are not limited
to, housing navigation services, assistance with applications for housing, public assistance, referrals for
healthcare, including mental health or substance use treatment, education, and employment supports.

The Contractors shall be monitored for performance through reports available from the HM1S
system as follows:
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His Excetlency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
aru) the Honoroble Council
Page 3 of 3

•  Length of time persons remain homeless.

•  The extent to which persons who exit homelessness to permanent housing
destinations return to homelessriess.

•  Successful exit to permanent housing destinations.

The vendors listed above were selected for this project through a competitive bid process. A
Request for Applications was posted on the Department of Health and Human Services' web site from
March 28. 2019 through April 25. 2019. The Department received twenty six (26) eligible applications,
with one vendor withdrawing after submission. The applications were revlevved and scored by a team of
Individuals with program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough discussion of the strengths
and weaknesses of the applications. The Bid Summary is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement has the option to extend for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of tt4 parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals and families who
are experiencing housing instability will not receive the essential services and supports for themselves
ar>d their families.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds; Source, of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted.

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

77m Otporlmenlcl HeoUh ohd Human Scruitzs'Miuion iM to join coniniuniTtes and [amiiict
in providing oiiportunUitt [Of citi^tnt to ochitot httillh and indopcndtnec.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (verflon 5/8/15)
Subject: State Gram in Aid Homeles;; A»is»intC Program /RFA-2Q20-DEHS-OI-STATE-241

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachmenis shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any inrormailon (hat is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT ^ ^
The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. roENTrFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Sute Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. KH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

WayPoint
1.4 Contractor Address

464 Chestnut Street

Manchester NH 03105

1.5 Contmctor Phone

Number

603-518-4300

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927-102-

500731

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/21

1.8 Price Limitation

7,000,000

1.9 Coniracling Officer for Slate Agency
Nathan D. While, Director

1. 10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatoryl.lrf/ Contractor Signature

1.13 Aclcnowledgemerit: State of , County of

On 3 0+^^'^ . before the undersigned officer, pcrsonolly appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be (he person whose name is signed in block 1.1 1, and acknowledged thai s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of (he Peace

NlCOUE J. WAUG^ JubBoo at Wc Poeoo
StBtD of Now Hampstto

MYCf&O^BrionExplrBeJttfvn.gga 0.
• of the Peace v.13.2 Nome and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

KlvCoXg V^C^\V.C^ A j'nrxini'vVvat'i'v*
.14 Agency Signature

Dntei^J
Admims^tioij. bivi

.15 b/em^nd Title ofState Agency Signatory ^

rjllKihA./.Sii.h/in'iii Bitf'.fer, Ceo-16 Approval by ibe 1^.\^. Department Admims^tioij. Division of Personnel Ofapplicable)

By: Director, On:

Tt Approvap^^ Aji^ijew^KnerBi (Form/Substance and Execution) Ofapplicable)

By: O"- c/<y/2^/s

iS^/^pq^SuHfyvra^emor and Executive Council 0/applicable)

By: On:

Page I of 4
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2. CMPLOVM£NT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I.I ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Coniractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or.sale of goods, or
both, identiHed and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTTVE DATEyCOMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3. t Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hcreundcr, shall become elTcctive on the date ihe Covemor
and'Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
(he Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block ' -.
l.l4("Efrectivc Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall bc performed at (he sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, Including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
coniraty, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuajtcc of payments hereunder, ore
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the Stale shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, arid shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Conu^clor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account'
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. contract PRJCE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMEf^.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and tcrma of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT 6 which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The puymeni by the State of the contraci.price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and (he complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Coniractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any omounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under (his Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted byN.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Norwiihsianding ony provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of ell payments aulhorizcd. or actually
made hereunder, exceed (he Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance ofthc Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal ouihorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contraclor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opporruniry
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize ouxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing ond speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to (he Contractor. In'addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin end wilt take
afftrnutive action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any port by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60),' and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Slate ofNew Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit li)e State or United States access lo any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations end orders,
artd the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement. •

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personrtel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants (hat all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified lo perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under ell applicable
lasvs.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Coniractor shall not hire,
ond shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services lo hire, any person who is a State
employee orofncial, who .is materially involved in the.
procurement, administration or performance of this

of 4 <7

Contractor Initials

Date
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Agreement. This provision sholl survive (erminoiion ofihis
Agreement.
7.3 The ContrsciingOfficer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting OfTicer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENTOF-OEFAULTmEMEDIES.,
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcrcundcr; ond/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State .
may ukc any one. or more, or all. of the following actions: •
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser ipccificallon of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of (he notice; end if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, (ermtnaie this Agreement, eHleciive two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the coniracl'prlce
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the Slate
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the Stale may owe to
the Contractor any damages (he State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in eqiiity.-^or both.

9. DATAyACCESS/CONFIDENTMLirV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used In this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
ihformaiion and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys; maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or uoEnished.

9.2 All data and any property, tvhich has been received from
(he Stale or purchased wi(h funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Slate, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreetnenl for any reason.
9.3 Conndcntiality of data shall be goverr>ed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other exisiing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the Stale.

10. TERMfNATION. In the event of on early icrminolion of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fineen '(l5)days after the dole of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and (he contract price earned, (o
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and numberofcopies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in (he attached EXHIBPf A.

n. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
(he performfince of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects on independent contractor, ond is neither an agent nor
on-cmployec of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind (he State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by (he State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delegation/subcontracts.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

•  13. rNDEMNTFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
Indemnify and hold harmless (he State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
Slate, its officers and employees, and any and ail claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Slate, its officers
ond employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oQ the acts or qmissiorts of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of (he
sovereign Immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the (ermineiion of this Agreement.

M. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insuraoce:

14. I.I comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI .OOO.OOOper occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate ;-ond
14.1.2 special cause ofloss coveroge form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 89% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Depaitment of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed In the State of New
Hampshire.

Page 3 of 4
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14.3 The Contraclor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, d certifica(e(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contraclor shall also furnish to the Coniracdng Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtiricaic(s) of
insurance for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ccriiflcaie(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and ore
incorporated herein by reference. Each certifica!c(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

IS. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
1 S.i By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants (hat (he Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers'Compensation").
/S.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish ihc Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 'A end any
applicable renewalfs) thereof, which shall be attached and ore
incorporated herein by reference. Tbc State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Coniroctor. which might .
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performaoce of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No foilure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be dcenKd a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor. '

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hcrcio to the other party
shall be deemed to hove been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Slates Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

IS. amendment. This Agreemeot may be amended,
waived or discharged onty by en instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the Siote of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and (heir respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied ogainst or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
arc for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid-in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL-PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
. forth in the attached EXHIBITC arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE A,CR£EMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number ofcounterparta, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and urtdcrstandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Humar> Services
State Gront in Aid Homeless Assistance Program

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor
as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall provide emergency shelter services to individuals and
families who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless statewide. Including
but not limited to:

2.1.1. Ensuring temporary shelter (non-permanent shelter) is designed to meet
the basic needs of individuals and families who have no other housing
options and who would otherwise be without a place to sleep.

2.1.2. Ensuring basic needs of each Individual are met that at a minimum include
a safe, protective, and sanitary environment, on a short-term emergency
or transitional basis, as described in RSA 126-A:26.

2.1.3. Operating a facility in accordance with Exhibit C-1 Operation of Facilities:
Compliance with Laws and Regulations that includes at a minimum:

2.1.3.1. Building maintenance and repair.

2.1.3.2. Security systems.

2.1.3.3. Heating and possible cooling equipment.

2.1.3.4. Property and business Insurance.'

2.1.3.5. Utilities and furnishings.

2.1.3.6. Amenities such as bathrooms.

2.1.4. the Contractor shall provide Case Management Services to assist
individuals and families who are homeless or at-rlsk of becoming
homeless to access and apply for other services with the goal of obtaining
permanent housing. Activities Include but are not limited to:

Way Point ExMbitA Contractor InitiDls

RFA-2020-DeHS-01-STATE-24 Page 1 of 3 Date
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2.1.4.1. ■ Assessing' individuals and families' needs for well-being and
obtaining housing, and developing an individualized plan to meet
those needs.

2.1.4.2. Developing an individualized plan with the types of services and
assistance programs to meet their needs.

2.1.4.3. Assisting individuals and families with accessing emergency shelter.

2.1.4.4. Assisting individuals and families with applying for and accessing
permanent housing.

2.1.4.5. Assisting individuals and families with applying for mainstream
benefits, including, but not limited to. SSI. TANF. SNAP. Medicaid,
Veteran and other State or Federal benefits.

2.1.4.6. Assisting individuals and families with accessing community
providers and supports, for. including but not limited to, mental health-
services. substance use treatment, medical care, employment,
veterans benefit, financial and food assistance, and education

. supports.

2.1.5. The Contractor shall comply with the program requirements, which
include but are not limited to;

2.1.5.1. Following best practices in providing emergency shelter services In
accordance with the National Alliance to End Homelessness, "The
Five Keys to Effective Emergency Shelter* that Include but are not
limited to:

;

2.1.5.1.1. Housing First Approach

2.1.5.1.2. Safe and appropriate diversion

2.1.5.1.3. immediate and low-barrier access

2.1.5.1.4. Housing-focused, rapid exit services

2.1.5.1.5. Data to measure performance

2.1.5.2. Participating in Coordinated Entry as required by the State, a
centralized or coordinated process designed to get people In
permanent support housing, in accordance with the NH BOS CES
Policy Manual adopted on January 23, 2018. that is herein
incorporated by reference and as amended.

2.1.5.3. Accepting homeless and at risk of homelessriess individuals and
families regardless of their sobriety and other conditions such as but
not limited to mental health services, medication stability, sexual
orientation, vulnerability to illness, vulnerability to victimization,
vulnerability to physical assault, racial equality, marital status or
ability to pay program fee. In accordance with federal Housing Urban
Development (HUD) guidance for low threshold eligibility prMrams.

Way Poini ExNbtl A Contractor l/tlUals nfVT"
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2.1.5.4. Entering data Into the Homeless Management information System
(HMIS) to collect , client-level data and data on the provision of
housing and services to homeless individuals and families, in
accordance with the federal HUD data standards for emergency
shelter, unless restrictive by law such as for domestic violence. The
data standards may be found at; http://nh-
hmis.orQ/sites/default/files/reference/NH-HMIS-PnP-112Q18.pdf

2.1.5.5. Agreeing to on-site monitoring, on an annual basis, to review
compliance, progress, and performance, which includes, but is not
limited to:

2.1.5.5.1. Reviewing policies and procedures for services
provided.

2.1.5.5.2. Reviewing financial analyses.

2.1.5.5.3. Reviewing for compliance with safety and hazard
requirements.

2.1.5.5.4. Reviewing Data and HMIS entry standards.

2.1.5.6. Complying with New Hampshire Administrative Rules He-M 314
Rights of Persons Using Emergency Shelters.'
http:/Avww.oencourl.slate.nh.us/rules/state aoencies.he-
m300.html and ensuring that individuals understand their rights

3. Reporting

3.1.The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department, with the
corresponding monthly Invoice for payment that includes the aggregate number
df individuals served, in.accordance with Section 2.1.5.4 above, no later than the
10*^ day of the following month.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit an annual report to the Department, with the
aggregate number of individuals served in accordance with Section 2.1.2.4,
beginning September 30, 2020 and each year thereafter.

4. Performance Measures

4.1.The Contractor's performance shall be measured to ensure that the data is
entered into HMIS in accordance with Section 2.1.5.4, above, and clients are
receiving the assistance needed to meet their goals.

4.2. The Contractor shall be monitored for performance through reports available from
the HMIS system that include but are not limited to:

4.2.1. Length of time persons remain homeless

4.2.2. The extent to which persons who exit homelessness to permanent housing
destinations return to homelessness

4.2.3. Successful exit to permanent housing destinations

Wey Point Exhibit A Contraclor IniUals
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. Price Limitation; This agreement Is one of multiple agreements that win serve the State Grant
In Aid to Homeless program. No maximum or minimum client and service volume Is
guaranteed. Accordingly, the price limitation among all agreements is identified in Block 1.8
of the P-37 for the duration of the agreement.

2. The funding source for this agreement for State Grant In Aid (SGIA) Homeless Assistance
program are 100% General Funds

2.1. Funds for SGIA Homeless Assistance program across all vendors, statewide, are
anticipated to be $7,000,000 and available In the'following amounts:

2.1.1. $3,500,000 for State Fiscal Year 2020.

2.1.2. $3,500,000 for State Fiscal Year 2021.

2.2. The Department will reimburse the Contractor at a rate of $11.00 per individual per day.
The rate includes all services provided In this agreement on behalf of the individual per
day.

3. Payments shall be rhade as follows:

3.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs. Including the final reimbursement request
for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each rhorith, for the previous
month, and accompanied by an Invoice from the Contractor for the amount of each
requested disbursement along with a payment request form and any other documentation
required, as designated by the State, which shall be completed and signed by the
Contractor.

3.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 5.4. Exhibit 8..
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:
housinQSuoDor1sinvoices@dhhs.r1h.Qov

3.3.The Contractor shall Keep detailed records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional financial
Information If requested by the State to verify expenses. The Contractor shall return
completed invoices, as provided by the Department, no later than thirty (30) days from the

EjtftibliB Comrsctor innito.
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date services are provided.

3.4. The Conlractor shall submit completed invoices to:
I

State Grant in Aid to Homeless Program
Bureau of Housing Supports
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Economic and Housing Stability
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Phone:603-271-9196

3.5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if sufficient funds are
available. ^

4. Notwithstanding anything, to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that payment under
this agreement may be withheld. In whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
Federal or Stale law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or If the said
services have not been satisfactorily completed In accordance with the terms and conditions
of this agreement.

5. Payments may be w/ithheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified
In Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

EtfUMQ Conlractor tnftttfl
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SPECIAL PRQVISIOMS

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that at! funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and. In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Cprnpttance with Federal.and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state lasvs, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

; 2. TImo and Manner ef Determination: Eligibility delermlnalions shall be mede on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition lo the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor '
shall maintain a data Tila on each recipient of sen/ices hereurxler. which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations lhat the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted lo fill out
an epplicatlon form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employmeni on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Stale In order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Stale may terminate this Contract and any subhcontract or sub-agreement If it is
determined lhat payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor..

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or Inany
' other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties

hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for eny services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by (he Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulallons) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate

■ which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service, if at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Flr^al
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine lhat the Contractor has used .
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Coniracior to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, In which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin

excess of costs;

Exhlbii C - Special Provisions ConlrBcior Initials.
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7.3. Demand repayrhent of the excess payment by (he Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute en Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse (he Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is.found by the Department to be ineligible for such services al
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specined above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecUng ali costs
and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all

-  income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently end
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders. Vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor lime cards, payrolls, and olher records requested or required by the
Department.

. 8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall Include at! records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records:. Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of senrices.

9. Audit: Contractor shdil submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that (he report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of Stales, Local Governments, and Non
Profil Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
(hey pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retentior^ hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports artd records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, It Is
understood end agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shad be held liable for any state
Of federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, at) payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of (he services end the Contract shad be conndential and shall not
be disclosed by the ContrBcior. provided however, that pursuant to state taws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public ofTidals requiring such Information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and pro>^ded further, that
the uise or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or (he Contractor's responsibilities v^th
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

ExhU>lt C - Special Provbions ContrndorlNilab.
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Nolwilhstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants end conditions contained In
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at Ihefollowing
times If requested by (he Department.
11.1. Interlrn Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed descriptionof

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and •
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obllgalions of the parlies hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shad terminate, provided however, that tf, upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder (he Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from (he Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of (he Contract shall include the following-
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with (he State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or ̂ ch other funding sources as were available or

■ required, e.g., the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any end all original materials
produced, including, but not limits to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwilhout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon (he contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, end will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees (hat, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaiend
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws end regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP); The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has '
received a single award of $500,(X)0 or more. If (he recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C - Spect«] Pro«4sic;>ns Conlrsclor Inltlsts

(wtvta Page 3 ol 5 Dsie



DocuSign Envelope 10:14BFFC68-7403-4FA8-A7FF-28C49F037405

New Hampshire Oepartmont of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

more emprfoyees. It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certificalion Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on fiie. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than SO employees, regardless of the amount of the asvard, the recipient wili provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical end educational Institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certificalion Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdo)/ab6ut/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Llmlied English Proficiency, end resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compllance'wtth the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Controctors must take reasonable steps lo ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access lo its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistlcblowef Protections: The
followir>g shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Sim^ified Acquisition Threshold as defined In46
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

y

Contractor Employee Whistleblcwer Rights and requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 20.13)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract wili be subject to the whistleblower rights
anid remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower prolecUons established al
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Aulhorizalion Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described In section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause; Including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that Ihe Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibillly and accountability for the functlon(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
funclion(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions If
the subcontractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate Ihe prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's perfonnance on an ongoing basis

<7
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19.4. Provide to OHMS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functlonsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at Its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor ideniines defidencies or areas for Improvement are Identined.' the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. ' COSTS: Shall mean those direct end indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost end'accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20-2. DEPARTMENT: NH Depanment of Health and Human Sen/ices.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submined by the Contractor on a
form or fornis required by the Oepartmenl an,^containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by (he Contractor In accordance with the terms and condiilons of the
Contract and setting forth the lota! cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean thai period of time or that specified activity determined by (he Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEOERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or slate laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
ContracI will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

:k
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

t. Revisions to Form P>37, General Provisions

■  1.1. Section 4. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is reoiaced as follows:

4., CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEkflENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the coritrary. all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in pert,
under this Agreement are .contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, elimlnetes, or otherwise
modifies the'eppropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or In part, in no event shall the
Slate be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modincation of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available. If ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modincation.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is emended by adding the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Stale, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the Slate is exercising Us
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, (he Contractor shall, within IS days of notice of eariy
termination, develop and submit to the Stale a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement,.includin9 but r>ot limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contrector shall fully cooperate with the Slate and shall promptly provide detailed
informatiori to supporl (he Transition Plan including, but'not limited to. any information or data

• requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan arid
shall provide ongoing corrimunication arvd revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients recei>ring
services under the Agreement are transllloned lo having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the Stale, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in.the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about' the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in Us
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right lo extend this agreement for up to two (2) additioi^l years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parlies and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Exhlt^ C-1 - Revisions/ExcepUora lo Stsndon] Controd Lor>guoge ConirQclor Inillds
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Sublitle 0;.41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:'

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUfMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5l5i-5l60.of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part ii of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require cenification by grantees (end by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grent during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set'out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this.form should
send it to: ''

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee ceflifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees thai the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions thai will be taken against employees for violation of such

■ prohibition;
1.2. . Establishing an ongoing drug-free ewarer^ess program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers'of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that rriay be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violalions

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
'1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and

1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
convlclion;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4,2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExNbli 0 - Csnirtccllon rooanSing Drug Freo Vendor Inlllols3^
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has designated a centrai point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shai) include the.
Identincation number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the follov^ng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagreph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as

amended; or'
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistarice or

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; '

1.7. fvlaking a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space providad below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Date

Vpijbor Name:

E'hibli D - Ceniflcallon regarding Drug Free Vertdor Nilais,
Workplace Requirements <l7.v/ill
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
• Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and-further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the Ger>eral Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have bean paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Cortgress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contrector).

. 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid'or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with Its instructions, attached and identified es Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards st all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this irarvsection
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this.
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who falls to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penally of not less than SlO.OOO and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Name: ^or

Date

Exhibit E - Ceftincoliofl Regarding Lobbying Verxlor Inhtals.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Parl-TS regarding Oebarment,
Suspension,-and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 end 1. t2 of the General Provisions execute the foliovhring
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contraci), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification sal out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide (he certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation In this covered trarvsaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whelher to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certincalion or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary partidpant knowingly rendered an erroneous certificdtion, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide imm^iale written notice to (he DHHS agency to
whom (his proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered iransection,' 'debarred.' 'suspended,' 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction,' 'participant.* "person.' 'primary covered transacllon.' 'principal,' 'proposal,' end
'volunlariiy excluded,' as used in (his clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction tse entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In (his covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause tilled 'Certlficaiion Regarding Debarmeni, Suspension, Ineligibi'ity and Voluntary Exclusion >
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower Her covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower Her covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligibie, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprccurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be conslrycd to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibh F - Cflrlincetlon Roganjing Debarmeni. Suspension Vendor inlilols
And Olhor RaiponslWlily Matters ^ v Vi
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inrormalion of a participant Is not required to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a'prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowinglyenters into a lower tier covered transaction vrith a person v^o Is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction. In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemment, OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certines to the best of its Knowledge and belief, that it end its
prlhcipsls;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared ineligible, or

vclunlarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a crimir>al offense in.
connection with obtairxing, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) j
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust !
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of (
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen properly;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

-11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certincalioh, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing end submilting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined In 45 CFR Pert 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to cenify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach'an explanation to Ihis proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier parlidpant further agrees by'submitting Ihis proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibiiity, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

Dale Name: 1'
Title:

Exhibll F - Certincotlon Reotrdlrtg Oobdrmdnl, Su3peA»lon Vendor Initiaie
And Other Re^ponslbtllty Metiers
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASEO ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as tdentined in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions. to execute the following
cerlincatlon:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicatjie
federal nondiscnminalion requirements, which may include;

- the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, reiigion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires cariain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the .Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act ol 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S€72(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil righis obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices .or In the delivery of services or
bisnefits. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits reciplents of federahfinenclal
■assister>ce from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);
• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discnmlnaling on the basis of disability, in re^rd to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

. - the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections '12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;
- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assist^ education programs;
• the Age Dtscrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination: Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-malcing
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); anid Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2,2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when ihe
egency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments,.suspension or temiination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
Vendor inUele
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a Tindlng of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, pr sex
against a recipient .of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civnl Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the. Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: " .

I. By signlr>g and submiiting this proposal (contract) the Vendor egrees to comply with the provisions ..
indicated above. ■

\^dor Name:

Date Name: ̂ Wio.

/ C^o

ExWbli G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 |
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or i
contracted for by an entity ar>d used-routinely or regularly for Ihe provision of health, day care, education. |
or library services to children under the age of 16, if (he services are funded by Federal programs either I
directly or through State or local govemrhents. by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The I
law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences, facilities funded solely by I
Medicare or Medicald funds, end portions of facllilies used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure j
to comply with ihe provisions of the law may result In the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an adminlstrativa compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section l .3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Conirector'&
representative as identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12of (he General Provisions, to execute the following
certincallon;

1. By signing and submitting (his contract; the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
ail applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

Date Name: IcwAa)
Title:

TAjHr'-ftwI/lA »
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEftrtENT

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Porlabilify and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Daflnltlona.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set'shall have the same nieaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AQoreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

,g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Indiyiduai" shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual* in 45 CFR Section 160.T03
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in.accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. . 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or ort behalf of Covered Entity. ^

3/2014 6>ch£Wl I Vendor Initials
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I- 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.-

m. 'Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.'

n. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpari C. and amendments thereto.

o  -Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard thai renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards devefoping^anizailon that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute. ' s '-*/

P- Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate. Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third-party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach NoUncation
Rules'of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disdosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Ventior InlUaU
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bourid by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Qbllgations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the-f"'^'
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a.risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identificalion;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the •
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment swithin 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity. f

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
arid records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or.
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party t^neftciary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business assqciates. who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 ExhIbJii Ventior InlUati
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pursuant to this Agreement, witfi rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use.and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. ' Withln ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to futfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
'business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However.if forwarding the
individual's request (o Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or-the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection wilh the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in

'  the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend-the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limilalion(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Enllty shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuani to 45 CFR Section '
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Enllty has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of (his
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the'
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Oefinitions and Reculatorv References. All terms used, but not .otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Oata Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with.respecl to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be.resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule^
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e. Seoreaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, retum or
destruction of PHt, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

Thft.Stale me of the Vendor

Wiu

Title

ame of Authorized Representative Name bf Authorized Representative

tiX.tdT
) of Authorized Represerllative Title of Authorized RepressRepresentative

Date Dale
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CERTiFICATtON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
/  ACT fFFATAVCOMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
date related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sutngrants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modincations result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award fs subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award,
tn accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information) the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHMS) must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Nome of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Fundir>9 agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive Of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)-
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days In which
the award or award ameridmenl Is made.
The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Infofmalion). and further agrees
to have the Contractor'a fepresontative. as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certirtcallon:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparer»cy Act.

/endorName:

■

Date Name:

Tills: O L ^
IaAvAJLaXT/ 6^-0
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FORMA

As (he Vendor ideniiried In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to (he
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  The DUNS number for your entity Is; 0 ̂

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or-organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual

.  gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

. If the answer to tf2 above is NO, slop here

If the answer to above is YES, please answer Ihe following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic repons filed under section l3(a)or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 70o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

if the answer to 03 above Is YES, stop here

If Ihe answer to 03 above is NO, please answer the foilovring:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

..'■-•fit

CU4)HHS;n07t3
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definilions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, uriauthorized access, or any simitar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With .regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations. -

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide,'National institute of Standards and Technology,-U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including svithout limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable information.

Confidential Information atso includes any and all information owned or managed by
the Stale of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (OHMS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of svhich collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal (aw or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, -other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

-  6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data;, and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or softv^^re characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misroullng of physical or electronic
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mall, all of which may have (hie potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" rrieans any .network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of (nfonmalion
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS date.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, sociaf security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biorhetric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specinc individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Informaiion at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or 'PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
defrnltion of "Protected Health Informaiion" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected HealthJnformation that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American Naiional Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF OHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
.except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor.
including bui not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has/an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those, uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI

■ pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must r>ot disclose PHI In violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are no! indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm corripliance with the terms of this
.Contract.

11. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Conftdential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be enciypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure-the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data' and any
derivative in whatever, form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
Slates. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential securily events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anil-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anii-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State'is
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or othenMse physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described In NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Oepartmenl of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written cerlincation will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information lifecyde, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless or the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3; The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the sen/ices for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines speciftc security
expectations,' and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor wilt work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
Stale of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor. Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HiPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with, the •Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
f^anagement Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department.and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly lake measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Stale shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contrector must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a)', DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and. to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of. Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to -maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and the
State's Siecurity Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. .This includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire networlc.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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Exhibil K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and' individually
identifiable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by.unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door lo.cks, card keys.

.  biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Conftdential Data, including any
derivative files-containing personally Identifiable information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstartces involved.

i. understand that their user aedentiats (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the-privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA.
arid other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to. and
riotwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personalty identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requlreinents

5. Determine whether Breach notiricalion is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source.' and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any "mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

, DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

6. DHHS Security Officer:

"DHHSInformalionSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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